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On July 31, 2020, StoneX Group, Inc. (the "Company") filed its Form 8-K ("the Original Form 8-K") to report the acquisition of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“GAIN”), as
contemplated by the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 26, 2020 (the "Merger Agreement"), by and among the Company, GAIN and Golf Merger Sub I Inc. ("Merger
Sub"). The Original Form 8-K did not include the audited financial statements of GAIN or the pro forma unaudited financial statements of the combined entity. This Amendment to the Form 8-K is
filed to include the financial statement information required under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K in connection with the acquisition of GAIN.

Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, this amended Form 8-K speaks as of the filing date of the Original Form 8-K and has not been updated to reflect events occurring subsequent to the
original filing date. Accordingly, this amended Form 8-K should be read in conjunction with our filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent to the filing of the Original
Form 8-K.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 8-K/A contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “may,” “should,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “assumes,” “can,” “will,” “could,” “likely,” “intends,” “might,” “predicts,” “seeks,”
“would,” “believes,” “estimates” or “plans.” These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements relating to the expected results of the merger with GAIN, including any
anticipated cost or capital synergies associated therewith, operating efficiencies and results, growth, client and stockholder benefits, accretion, financial benefits or returns, key assumptions,
integration costs and transaction costs, our future financial performance, our business prospects and strategy, anticipated financial position, liquidity and capital needs and other similar matters. These
forward-looking statements are based on management’s current expectations and assumptions about future events, which are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances
that are difficult to predict. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, that may cause actual results to be
materially different from any anticipated results expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements, including, among others, (i) anticipated benefits of the merger, including the realization of
revenue, accretion, financial benefits or returns and other cost and capital synergies may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected, (ii) adverse changes in economic, political
and market conditions, such as price levels and volatility in the commodities, securities and foreign exchange markets in which we and GAIN operate, (iii) losses from our market-making and trading
activities arising from counter-party failures and changes in market conditions, (iv) the possible loss of key personnel or GAIN key personnel, (v) the impact of increasing competition, (vi) the impact
of changes in government regulation, (vii) the possibility of liabilities arising from violations of federal and state securities laws, (viii) the impact of changes in technology in the securities and
commodities trading industries and (ix) other risks and uncertainties, including those set forth under the heading “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and, to the
extent applicable, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. You should read cautionary statements made as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this Form
8-K/A. We cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this Form 8-K/A will prove to be accurate. Furthermore, if our forward-looking statements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuracy
may be material. In light of the significant uncertainties in these forward looking statements, you should not regard these statements as a representation or warranty by us or any other person that we
will achieve our objectives and plans in any specified time frame, if at all. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date they
were made. Except as expressly required under federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, we do not have any obligation, and do not
undertake, to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the date of this press release, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.
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Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired

Financial statements of GAIN as required under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K in connection with the merger with GAIN are attached.
(b) Pro Forma Financial Information

Pro forma financial information as required under Item 9.01 of Form 8-K in connection with the merger with GAIN are attached.



(c) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 26, 2020, by and among the Company, GAIN and Merger sub (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on February 27, 2020)_*

23.1 Consent of BDO USA, LLP

99.1 Audited consolidated financial statements and financial statements schedules of GAIN for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements of GAIN for the three months ended March 31, 2020.

99.2 Unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the year ended September 30, 2019, unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the
six months ended March 31, 2020, and unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2020.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL

document.

* Previously filed.


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/913760/000091376020000031/exhibitmergeragtexecution.htm

Signature

Pursuant to the Requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the Undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

StoneX Group Inc.
(Registrant)
October 13, 2020 /s/ WILLIAM J. DUNAWAY
(Date) William J. Dunaway

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

‘We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Forms S-3 (No. 333-117544, 333-137992, 333-144719, 333-152461, 333-186704, 333-209912, and 333-
231301) and on Form S-8 (No. 333-108332, 333-142262, 333-196413, 333-197773, 333-216538, and 333-229807) of StoneX Group Inc. our reports dated March 16, 2020, relating to the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule, of Gain Capital Holdings, Inc. which appears in the Current Report on Form 8-K/A of StoneX Group, Inc. filed on October 13,
2020.

BDO USA, LLP
New York, New York
October 13, 2020
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc.
Bedminster, NJ

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2019, the related
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive (loss)/income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes and
the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2019, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

‘We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAQB"), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)] issued
by the Commirtee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS0™) and our report dated March 16, 2020 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

QOur audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

‘We have served as the Company's auditor since 2019.

New York, NY

March 16, 2020
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 190,072 % 278,850
Cash and securities held for customers 929,263 842,478
Receivables from brokers 112,296 84,271
Property and equipment, net 30,563 30,579
Intangible assets, net 24,163 32,195
Goodwill — 27,820
Other assets 64,012 36,355
Total assets $ 1,350,369 $ 1,332,548
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Liabilities
Payables to customers 5 929,263 § 842 478
Payables to brokers — 1,635
Accrued compensation and benefiis 5,462 11,227
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,129 41,562
Income tax payable 638 5,764
Convertible senior notes 137,178 132,109
Total liabilities 1,115,670 1,034,775
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock ($0.00001 par value; 120 million shares authorized; 55.3 million shares issued
and 37.5 million shares outstanding as of December 31, 2019; 54.5 million shares issued and
37.8 million shares outstanding as of December 31, 2018) —_ —_
Additional paid-in capital 249111 243 216
Retained earnings 134,752 204,483
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (21,647) (29,410)
Treasury stock, at cost (17.8 million shares at December 31, 2019 and 16.7 million at
December 31, 2018, respectively) (127,517) (120,516)
Total shareholders’ equity 234,699 297,773
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,350,369 $ 1,332,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

REVENUE:
Hetail revenue
Futures revenue
Other revenue
Total non-interest revenue
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Total net interest revenue
Net revenue
EXPENSES:
Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing
Referral fees
Trading expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Purchased intangible amortization
Communications and technology
Bad debt provision
Restructuring expenses
Legal settlement
Goodwill impairment
Impairment of investment
Total operating expense
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT
Interest expense on long term borrowings.
(LOSS)/INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (BENEFIT)/EXPENSE
Income tax (benefit)/expense
NET (LOSS)/INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income from discontinued operations
NET (LOSS)/INCOME
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

NET (LOSS)INCOME APPLICABLE TO GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

Other comprehensive income/{loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustment

COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME APPLICABLE TO GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

Basic (loss)/earmnings from continuing operations per share

Basic (loss)earnings per share

Diluted (loss)earnings from continuing operations per share

Diluted (loss)earnings per share

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
177,727 % 300,206
34,791 39,705
7,141 7 406
219,659 347317
16,598 12,503
2,325 1,863
14,273 10,640
233932 § 357,957
78,126 % 89,070
38,395 36,460
29,305 40,026
20,790 22,899
50,605 55,239
17,086 19,654
8811 14,171
19,504 21,961
2,024 2,508
1,274 762
— 5,306
28,098 —
= (130)
204018 $ 307,926
(60.086) 50,031
13,544 13,540
(73,630) $ 36,491
(12,869) 8,514
(60,761) % 27977
— 65,549
(60,761) $ 93,626
= 737
(60,761) $ 92,689
7,763 (13,740)
(52,998) $ 79,149
(1.63) 3 0.60
(163) % 211
(1L63) % 0.60
(1.63) % 2.08
37,388,984 43,731,881
37,386,984 44,189,324
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BALANCE—January 1, 2018
Net income applicable to GAIN Capital
Holdings, Inc.
Exercise of options

Conversion of restricted stock into
common stock

Issuance of common stock for the
employee stock purchase plan
Purchase of treasury stock

Shares withheld for net settlements of
share-based awards

Share-based compensation

Adjustment ta the redemption value of
put options related to non-controlling
interests

Dividends declared
Foreign currency translation adjustment
BALANCE—December 31, 2018

MNet loss applicable to GAIN Capital
Holdings, Inc.

Exercise of options

Conversion of restricted stock into
common stock

Issuance of common stock for the
employee stock purchase plan

Purchase of weasury stock

Repurchase of convertible notes

Share-based compensation

Dividends declared

Foreign currency translation adjustment
BALANCE—December 31, 2019

GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Treasury Paid in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total
45,152,299 % — $ (56927) $ 235659 $ 122686 § (15,670) $ 285,748
— —_ — — 92,889 — 92,889
169,695 e — 1,004 i = 1,004
651,503 — — — —_ — —
74,204 b i 515 s — 515
(8,216,611) —_ (63.514) —_ _— —_ (63,514)
(9,404) = (75) = - — (75)
= Wbt —4 6,038 e =y 6,038
= o — — (816) i (816)
= — - —s (10,276) - (10,276)
—_— — —_— —_ — (13.,740) (13,7409
37,821,686 § — % (120,516) $ 243216 $ 204483 § (29,410) $ 297,773
- e — —_ (60,761) — (60,761)
73,442 — — 281 — —_ 281
617,790 — — = — = =
101,260 — == 414 — — 414
{1,129,902) —_ (7,001) — — — (7,001)
s S — 148 e = 148
3= ux = 5,052 e = 5,052
= N, i i (8,970) - (8.970)
— — — — —_— 7,763 7,763
37,484,276 $ — % (127517) $ 249,111 $ 134752 $ (21,647) $ 234,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss)/income 5 (60,761) $ 93,626
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/income to cash provided by/(used in) by operating activities
Loss on foreign currency exchange rates 272 2,362
Depreciation and amortization 25,897 35,107
Deferred tax benefit (12,060) (2,815)
Amortization of deferred financing costs 597 648
Bad debt provision 2,024 2,508
Convertible senior notes discount amortization 5,902 5,590
Share-based compensation 5,052 6,038
Goodwill impairment 28,008 —
Loss on disposal of fixed assets — 1,332
Gain on sale of GTX — (69,292)
Interest earned on investments — (930)
Amortization of right of use asset 2914 =
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Securities held for customers 98,170 (103,781)
Receivables from brokers (23,024) (8.411)
Payables to brokers {1,635) (972)
Other assets (497) 6,267
Payables to customers 77,879 (109,957)
Accrued compensation and benefits (5,849) (1,117)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (11,580) 7,548
Income tax payable (3,886) 6,975
Lease liability (2,747) —_
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 124,766 (129,274)
Cash provided by/(used) in operating activities - continuing operations 124,766 (147,884)
Cash provided by operating activities - discontinued operations — 18,610
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (16,235) (14,745)
Purchase of partial interest of GAA/TT (2.422) (2,906)
Proceeds from sale of GTX — 96,519
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (18,657) 78,868
Cash used in investing activities - continuing operations (18,657) (16,806)
Cash provided by investing activities - discontinued operations — 95,674
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 281 1,004
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 414 515
Purchase of treasury stock (7,001) (63,589)
Dividend payments (8,970) (10,276)
Distributions to non-controlling interest holders — (634)
Maturity and repurchase of convertible notes (1,299) (6,350)
Net cash used in financing activities (16,575) (79,330)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,643 (42,164)
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NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH—Beginning of year
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH—End of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents held for customers (see note 2)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH—End of year

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes
Non-cash financing activities:
Adjustment to the redemption value of put options related to non-controlling interests

96,177 (171,900)
1,016,616 1,188,516
$ 1,112,793 1,016,616
190,072 278,850
922,721 737,766
& 1112792 1,016,616
5 9,182 9,111
9,384 8,648

$ — (816)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), is a Delaware corporation formed and incorporated en March 24, 2006. The
Company is a global provider of trading services and solutions, specializing in over-the-counter ("OTC"), and exchange-traded markets. The Company
operates its business in two segments: retail and futures. Through its retail segment, the Company provides its customers around the world with access to a
diverse range of global financial markets, including spot forex, precious metals, spread bets, and contracts for difference ("CFDs"), on currencies,
commodities, indices, individual equities, cryptocurrencies, bonds and interest rate products, as well as OTC options. The Company’s futures segment
offers execution and risk management services for exchange-traded products on major U.S, and European exchanges, including Bitcoin. For more
information about the Company’s segments, please refer to Note 23.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Consolidation

The Company's consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries and other subsidiaries in
which the Company holds a controlling financial interest. All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Sale of GTX ECN Business

On June 29, 2018, the Company completed the sale of its GTX ECN business, which previously comprised the Company's institutional segment, to
Deutsche Barse Group via its FX unit, 3607, for a total purchase price of $100 million less a working capital adjustment which amounted ta a $0.2 million
reduction in the purchase price. The Company determined that the institutional segment met the discontinued operations criteria set forth in Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") Subtopic 205-20-45, Presentation of Financial Statements, in the guarter ended June 30, 2018. As such, the institutional
segment results have been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for
the year ended December 31, 2018, For more information relating to the discontinued operations of the Company's GTX ECN business, please see Note 3.

Use of Estimates

Preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company revised its estimated fair value for Goodwill, resulting in the Company impairing
the entire amount of Goodwill. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and available information about current events and expectations about
actions undertaken in the future. Actual results could differ materially from estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with guidance set forth in ASC 606, Revenues from Contracts with Customers. The Company primarily generates
revenue through market making and by providing trading execution services for its clients. The Company categorizes revenue as Retail revenue, Futures
revenue, Other revenue or Net interest revenue.

Retail revenue is the Company s largest source of revenue. Retail revenue comprises trading revenue from the retail OTC business and advisory business.
OTC trading includes forex trading (“forex”), precious metals trading, CFDs and spread-betting (in markets which do not prohibit such transactions), as
well as other financial products.

Gains or losses are realized when customer transactions are liquidated. Unrealized gains or losses on trading positions are revalued at prevailing market
rates at the date of the balance sheet and are included in Receivables from brokers, Payables to customers, and Payvables to brokers on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Changes in net unrealized gains or losses are recorded in Retail revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
{Loss)/Income. Retail revenue is recorded on a trade date basis.

E-9




Table of Contents

Futures revenue consists of revenue from the Company'’'s futures business, which offers exchange-based trading execution services, focusing on the indices,
agricultural hedging, and commaodities sectors, Revenues in this business are generated through commissions, which are eamed for executing customer
trades. These revenues are booked on a trade date basis. The Company acts as an agent with respect to clearing trades, but is a principal with respect to fees
paid to introducing brokers in its futures business. The Company does not assume any market risk with respect to customer trades in this business.

Other revenue primarily comprises account management and transaction fees, inactivity, training fees charged to customer accounts, and receipt of class
action settlements, as well as foreign currency transaction gains and losses.

Net interest revenue consists primarily of the revenue generated by the Company's cash and customer cash held at banks, as well as funds on deposit as
collateral with the Company's liquidity providers, less interest paid to the Company's customers.

Interest revenue and interest expense are recorded when earned and incurred, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of 90 days or less at the time of acquisition to be cash equivalents. The Company's
cash equivalents consist of U.S. treasury bills and money market accounts, all of which are recorded at fair value.

Cash and securities held for customers

Cash and securities held for customers represents cash, and highly liguid assets held to fund customer liabilities in connection with trading positions and
customer cash balances. Included in this balance are funds deposited by customers and funds accruing to customers as a result of trades or contracts. The
Company records a corresponding liability in connection with this amount in Payables to customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of

December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, $6.5 million and $104.7 million, respectively, of total cash and securities held for customers are invested in
U.S. government and agency securities. Such securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized and realized gains and losses included in interest revenue
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income, as appropriate. In addition, the Company holds certain customer funds in
segregated or secured broker accounts. Legally segregated balances are not available for general use, in accordance with certain jurisdictional regulatory
requirements,

The table below further breaks out the Cash and securities held for customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents held for customers $ 922,721 $ 737,766
Marketable securities held for customers 6,542 104,712
(Cash and securities held for customers $ 929,263 § 842,478

Receivables from Brokers

Receivables from brokers, recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, include funds that the Company has posted with brokers as collateral required by
agreements for holding retail hedging positions and funds required to collateralize customer futures trading, Receivables [rom brokers also include gains or
losses realized on settled contracts, as well as unrealized gains or losses on open positions.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in accardance with applicable accounting guidance, as discussed in Note 5 Fair Value
Information.

Other financial assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis but nevertheless approximate fair value due to their short term
maturities. Such financial assets and liabilities include: Receivables from brokers, Convertible senior notes, certain Other assers, Payables ta customers,
Payables to brokers, and Accrued expenses and other liabilities.
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The above referenced receivables and payables include open trading positions which are held at fair value which change in value as the price of the
underlying product changes. Prices approximate the amounts at which the Company can settle the positions at the balance sheet date.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company owns financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk, These financial instruments are held primarily in Cash and cash
equivalents as well as Cash and securities held for customers. The Company’s credit risk is managed by investing primarily in high-quality money market
and U.S. Government instruments. The majority of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents are held at ten financial institutions.

The Company also has credit risk related to receivables from brokers included in Receivables from brokers and Cash and cash equivalents. December 31,
2019 and 2018, 12% and 34%, respectively, of the Company s brokers receivables included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were from one large, global
financial institution,

Property and Equipment and Other Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment is recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Identifiable improvements are capitalized and expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Property and eguipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over a three year useful life, except for leasehold improvements, which are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life.

The Company accounts for costs incurred to develop its trading platforms and related software in accordance with ASC 350-40, Internal-Use Software.
ASC 350-40 requires that such technology be capitalized in the application development stages. Costs related to training, administration and non-value-
added maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Capitalized software development costs are amortized over the useful life of the software, which the
Company estimates at three years.

In accordance with ASC 360-10, Property, Plant and Equipment, the Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets when events
and circumstances warrant such review. The carrying value of a long-lived asset is considered impaired when the anticipated identifiable undiscounted cash
flows from such an asset (or asset group) are less than carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized in the amount by which the carrying value exceeds
fair market value of the long-lived asset. This standard applies to assets held for use and not to assets held for sale. The Company has no assets held for
sale. The Company has identified no such impairment indicators as of December 31, 2019 or 2018.

Foreign Currencies

Each of the Company’s subsidiaries books and records are held using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiaries operate
(the functional currency). The Company has determined that it’s reporting currency is U.S. dollars (USD), to which non-USD subsidiary books are
translated. The Company’s Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of foreign currency translation adjustments from subsidiaries not using USD as
their functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are booked in functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains

and losses resulting from the settlement of such ransactions and from the remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional
currencies at period end exchange rates are recognized in Other revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income.
The Company recorded a foreign exchange loss of $0.3 million and $2.4 million, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Intangible Assets

GAAP addressing intangible assets requires purchased intangible assets other than goodwill to be amortized over their estimated useful lives unless their
lives are determined to be indefinite. The Company has both definite and indefinite lived intangibles. If indefinite-lived assets are determined to have a
finite life in the future, the Company will amortize the carrying value over the remaining estimated useful life at that time,

The Company analyzes its business, legal and regulatory environment at least annually and on an interim basis when conditions indicate impairment may
have occurred to determine whether its indefinite-lived intangible assets are likely to be impaired. This qualitative assessment indicated that it is more
likely than not that the Company s indefinite lived intangible assets are not impaired. Please refer to Note 9 for additional information.
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Goodwill

The Company recognized goodwill as a result of the acquisitions of certain subsidiaries. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair market value of
net assets acquired. In accordance with relevant GAAP, the Company tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, during the fourth quarter and on an
interim basis when conditions indicate impairment may have occurred (please refer to Note 9). In performing these assessments, management relies on and
considers a number of factors, including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, comparable market
transactions (to the extent available), other market data and the Company s overall market capitalization. There are inherent uncertainties related to these
factors which require judgment in applving them to the analysis of goodwill for impairment.

‘When testing for goodwill impairment, the Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances lead to
a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carying amount. If the Company concludes it is mare
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, a quantitative fair value test is performed.

Under the quantitative test, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared to its carrying value in order to identify potential impairment. If the fair value
of a reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of its net assets, goodwill is not considered impaired and no further testing is required. 1f the carrying value of
the net assets exceeds the fair value of a reporting unit, impairment is indicated at the reporting unit level and an impairment charge will be recorded. An
impairment charge will equal the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the amount of goodwill allocated
to the reporting unit.

Derivatives

Forex, metals, and CFDs allow for exchanging the difference in value of a particular asset such as a stock index, energy product, or gold contract, between
the time at which a contract is opened and the time at which it is closed. The Company’s retail customer open positions and positions held with liguidity
providers are considered derivatives under the accounting gnidance in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Therefore, they are accounted for at fair value,
and included in Receivables from brokers, Payables to customers, and Payables to brokers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company did not
designate any of its derivatives as hedging instruments. Net gains and losses with respect to derivative instruments are reflected in Retail revenue in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company records an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts when the prospect of collecting a specific customer account balance becomes
doubtful. Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable and historical bad debt experience when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. Changes in estimates are recognized in current year earnings. The customer receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, are
included in Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The related expense is recorded in Bad debt provision on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income.

Payables to Customers

Payables to customers, included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, include amounts due on cash and margin transactions. These transactions include
deposits, commissions and realized gains or losses arising from settled trades. The payables balance also reflects unrealized gains or losses arising from
open positions in customer accounts. The payables balance includes amounts deposited by white label partners for which the Company acts as a clearing
broker.

Payables to Brokers

Payables to brokers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value and the cash due to or from brokers, which is not measured at fair value but
approximates fair value. These balances occur when the Company’s hedging trades produce losses and necessitate a margin call to re-capitalize positions or
settle losses.

Lease Obligations

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company accounts for its leases under ASC 842, Leases. The Company determines if an arrangement is, or contains, a lease
at inception. Right-of-use assets and the related liabilities result from operating leases which were included in Other assets and Accrued expenses and other
liabilities, respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2019.
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Operating lease assets represent the Company's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to
make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease assets and liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the estimated
present value of lease payments over the lease term. The Company uses the estimated incremental borrowing rate in determining the present value of lease
payments. Variable components of the lease payments such as fair market value adjustments, utilities, and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred and
not included in determining the present value of lease liabilities, which will include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain
that the Company will exercise that option. The Company has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components which are accounted for as a single
lease component. As an accounting policy election, the Company excludes short-term leases having initial terms of 12 months or fewer. Lease expense is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Please see Note 11 for additional information on leases.

The Company continues to account for leases in the prior period financial statements under ASC Topic 840.
Referral fees

Introducing brokers direct customers to the Company in return for a referral fee on each referred customer’s trading volume or a share of net revenue
generated by each referred customer’s trading activity. White label partners offer the Company's trading services to their customers under their own brand.
Like introducing brokers, White label pariners charge referral fees for the trade flow brought to the Company. These fees are recorded in Referral Fees in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (1.0ss)/Income.

Trading Expenses

Trading expenses consist of exchange fees paid to stock exchanges and other third-parties for exchange market data that the Company provides to its
customers or uses to create its own derived data products, as well as fees for news services and clearing fees paid to prime brokers in connection with its
futures segment. These costs are expensed as incurred.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and are included in Selling and marketing expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities af a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded against deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized.
Contingent income tax liabilities are recorded when the criteria for loss recognition have been met, An uncertain tax position is recognized based on the
determination of whether or not a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination based upon the technical merits of the position. If
this recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being
realized upon ultimate resolution. As of December 31, 2019, the Company asserts that the earnings of its foreign subsidiaries will be permanently
reinvested in the working capital and ather business needs of the subsidiaries o the extent that repatriation of these earnings would trigger additional
capital gains tax, foreign withholding taxes, or material state income taxes. As such, amounts that can be brought back without triggering capital gains,
foreign withholding taxes, or material state income taxes will not be considered permanently reinvested, Based on the Company’s analysis, the Company
does not believe that the potential impact of the unrecognized deferred tax liability associated with the repatriation of such earnings would be material to
the financial statements.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation expense reguires measurement of compensation cost for share-based awards at fair value and recognition of compensation cost
over the vesting period, net of estimated forfeitures. For awards with service and performance conditions, the Company recognizes compensation cost on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

The fair value of stock options granted is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which considers, among other factors, the expected term
of the award and the expected volatility of the Company’s stock price, Although the Black-Scholes model meets the requirements of ASC 718,

Compensation-Stock Compensation, the fair values generated by the model
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may not be indicative of the actual fair values of the underlying awards, as it does not consider other factors important to those share-based compensation
awards, such as centinued employment, periodic vesting requirements and limited transferability.

The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes aption-pricing model is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
expected option life is based on historical experience of employee exercise behavior. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility, implied volatility,
price observations taken at regular intervals and other factors deemed appropriate. Expected dividend is based upon the current dividend rate.

The fair value of restricted stock unit awards is based an the fair value of the Company’s comman stock on the grant date.
Treasury Shares

In accordance with ASC 505-30, Equity - Treasury Stock, the Company treats the cost of acquired shares purchased as a deduction from shareholders”
equity and as a reduction of the total shares outstanding when calculating earnings per share.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic eamings per common share is calculated using the weighted average common shares outstanding during the year. Common equivalent shares from
stock options and restricted stock awards, using the treasury stock method, are also included in the diluted per share calculations unless their effect of
inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Please refer to Note 18 for discussion of the impact of the Company s convertible notes and non-controlling interesis on
EPS.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
which amended the guidance on accounting for leases. The FASB issued this update to increase transparency and comparability among organizations. This
update requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and the disclosure of key information about leasing arrangements.
The Company adopted the ASU effective January 1, 2019 using the additional (optional) approach, in accordance with ASU 2018-11 Leases (Topic 842):
Targeted Improvements, The Company initially recorded a right of use asset and lease liability of $12.6 million and $14.9 million, in Other assets and
Accrued expenses and other liabilities, respectively. There was no effect on opening retained earnings, and the Company continues to account for leases in
the prior period financial statements under ASC Topic 840.

In adopting the new lease standard, the Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the adoption of the new standard, which
allowed the Company to account for existing leases under their current classification, as well as omit any new costs classified as initial direct costs, under
the new standard. The Company also elected the practical expedient allowing an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset, to account for
separate lease and nonlease components as a single lease component. Please see Note 11 for additional information on leases.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), to address certain income tax
effects in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (" AQCI") resulting from the tax reform enacted in 2017, The amended guidance provides an option
to reclassify tax effects within AOCI to retained earnings in the period in which the effect of the tax reform is recorded. The amendments were effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods. The Company has adopted this ASU as of January 1, 2019, which did not have
any impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition as there were no balances in AOCI that are tax effected.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The ASU sets forth a “current expected credit loss”
{CECL) model which requires the Company to measure all expected credit losses tor financial instruments held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable supportable forecasts. This replaces the existing incurred loss model and is applicable to the measurement of
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost and applies to some off-balance sheet credit exposures, In February 2020, the FASB issued
ASU 2020-02, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), which amends the effective date of the original pronouncement for smaller reporting
companies. ASU 2016-13 and its amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods in fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2022, The Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this ASU on its financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Changes to Disclosure Requirements for Fair Virlue Measurements (Topic 820), which improved the
effectiveness of disclosure requirements for recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. The standard removes, modifies, and adds certain

disclosure requirements. The Company will adopt the new standard effective
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January 1, 2020 and does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes (“ASU 2019-12"), which
is intended to simplify various aspects related to accounting for income taxes. ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic
740 and also clarifies and amends existing guidance to improve consistent application. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on
its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On June 29, 2018, the Company completed the sale of its GTX ECN business, which previously comprised the Company's institutional segment, to
Deutsche Biirse via its FX unit, 360T, for a total purchase price of $100 million less a working capital adjustment which amounted to a $0.2 million
reduction in purchase price.

The Company recorded a gain of $69.3 million on the sale of the GTX business for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The Company determined that the sale of the GTX business qualifies as a discontinued operation under the criteria set forth in ASC 205-20-45,
Presentation of Financial Statements and the Company does not have any significant continuing involvement in these operations,

The results of operations from the discontinued segment for the yvears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018

REVENUE:
Institutional revenue $ —_ % 16,379
Other loss — (2)

Total non-interest revenue —_ 16,377
Interest revenue — 103

Total net interest revenue —_ 103

Net revenue 5 — § 16,480
EXPENSES:

Employee compensation and benefits 8 — i, 5,973

Trading expenses — 5,439

Other expenses — 3055
Total operating expense — 15,367
OPERATING FPROFIT — 1,113
Gain on sale of discontinued operations — 69,292
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE — 70,405
Income tax expense — 4,756
NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS $ — 5 65,649

4. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Under ASC Topic 606, revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers in exchange for an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in return for transferring those goods or services. The following is a description of the
Company's revenue recognition policies for contracts with customers.
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Futures Revenue

Futures revenue consists primarily of commissions and fees earned on futures and futures options trades that the Company executes on behalf of its
customers. The Company is not exposed to any market risk from this activity. The Company’s performance obligation related to futures revenue is trade
execution, which is satisfied on trade date. Accordingly, commission revenues are recorded on trade date.

Disaggregation of Revenues

The following table presents the Company’s futures revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by customer and service type for the services
described above, as it relates to the futures segment for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Futures
Direct Customers () $ 12951 § 14,549
Indirect Customers (2) 21,840 25,156
Other 9 4,980 4,262
Net Futures Revenue $ 39,771 % 43,967

(1) Direct customers are all customers not classified as indirect
(2) Indirect customers are referred to the Company by introducing brokers
(3) Other revenue comprises interest and fees

Futures Contract Assets and Futures Contract Liabilities

The timing of revenue recognition may ditfer from the timing of payment. The Company records an accrual when revenue is recognized prior to payment
and when the Company has an unconditional right to payment. The Company records a contract liability when payment is received prior to the time at
which the service obligation is satisfied.

5. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received in exchange for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The guidance establishes a three level hierarchy that ranks the quality and reliability of information used in
developing fair value estimates for financial instruments. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority
to unobservable data. In cases where two or more levels of inputs are used to determine fair value, a financial instrument’s level is determined based on the
lowest level input that is considered significant to the fair value measurement in its entivety. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are summarized below:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - Valuations that require inputs that are both unobservable to a market participant and significant to the fair value measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are transferred between levels during the period, fair values are ascribed as if the assets or liabilities had been transferred as of
the beginning of the period.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the reporting period and the
related hierarchy levels (amounts in thousands):
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Financial Assets/(Liabilities):

Cash and securities held for customers:

LS. treasury bills
Receivable from brokers:
Broker derivative contracts
Other assets:
Certificates of deposit
Other
Payables to customers:
Customer derivative contracts
Total

Financial Assets/(Liabilities):

Cash and securities held for customers:

U.S. treasury bills
Receivable from brokers:
Broker derivative contracts
Other assets:
Certificates of deposit
Other
Payables to customers:
Customer derivative contracts
Payables to brokers:
Broker derivative contracts
Total

The Company has not changed its valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of any financial assets and liabilities during the vears ended

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

as of December 31, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5 6542 % — 5 — &% 6,542
_ (5,949) — (5,949)
178 —_ — 178
152 — — 152
- 116,007 —_ 116,007
$ 6872 % 110,058 3% — 3 116,930
Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis
as of December 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 104,712 § — 8 — 3 104,712
o (7.637) = (7,637)
176 — — 176
128 —_ — 128
— 144,440 —_ 144,440
— 1,457 _— 1,457
$ 105,016 $ 138.260 $ —  $ 243,276

December 31, 2019 and 2018, nor has there been any movement between levels during these respective periods,

Level 1 Financial Assets

The Company has U.S. Treasury hills and certificates of deposit that are Level 1 financial instruments that are recorded based upon listed or quoted market
rates, The U.S. Treasury bills and money market accounts are recorded in Cash and cash equivalents and Cash and securities held for customers and the

certificates of deposit are recorded in Other Assets.

Level 2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company has customer derivative contracts that are Level 2 financial instruments recorded in Payables to customers.

The Company has broker derivative contracts that are Level 2 financial instruments recorded in Receivables from brokers and Payables to brokers.

The fair values of these Level 2 financial instruments are based upon directly observable values for underlying instruments.
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Level 3 Financial Liabilities

The Company did not have any Level 3 Financial Assets or Liabilities on December 31, 2019 or 2018.

Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

The table below presents the carrying value, fair value, and fair value hierarchy category of certain financial instruments that are not measured at fair value
in the consolidated balance sheets.

Receivables from brokers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value (disclosed above), and the Company’s posted funds with brokers that are
required as collateral for holding trading positions. Collateral is not measured at fair value but approximates fair value, because the Company may
withdraw it at its discretion. Settlement would be expected to occur within a relatively short period of time once a withdrawal is initiated.

Payables to customers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value (disclosed above), and customer deposits that the Company holds for its role
as clearing broker, These deposits are not measured at fair value, but approximate fair value, because they are cash balances that the Company or its
customers can settle at either party's discretion. Such settlement would occur within a relatively short period of time once a withdrawal is initiated.

Payables to brokers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value (disclosed above) and the cash due to or from brokers. The cash within this
balance is not measured at fair value but does approximate fair value, because it is immediately payable to the brokers. Settlement occurs as soon as a
broker initiates a margin call.

The carrying value of Convertible senior notes represents the notes’ principal amounts net of unamaortized discount (please refer to Note 16). The Company
assessed the notes’ fair value as determined by current Company-specitic and risk free interest rates as of the balance sheet date.

The table below represents the financial assets and liabilities at their carrying value and fair value (amounts in thousands):

As of December 31, 2019 Fair Value Measurements using:
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Carrying Value Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) [Level 3)
Financial Assets:
Receivables from brokers 3 118,245 § 118,245 8§ — 5 118,245 § —
Financial Liabilities:
Payables (o customers $ 1,045,270 % 1,045,270 8 — & 1,045,270 5% —-
Convertible senior notes $ 137,178 % 141,501 § — 5 141,501 §$ -
As of December 31, 2018 Fair Value Measurements using:
Quoted Prices
im Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Carrying Value Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets:
Receivables from brokers 5 91,908 % 91,908 § — 5 91,908 $ —
Financial Liabilities:
Payables to customers $ 986,918 $ 986,918 $ —_— 986,918 §$ —
Payables to brokers $ 3092 % 3,002 § — 5 3092 % —
Convertible senior notes $ 132,109 § 158,752 § — 3 158,752 & —

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

As a result of the 2019 annual goodwill impairment analysis, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $28.1 million to reduce the carrying value of
its reporting units to their fair value. This measurement was performed on a non-recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). See Note 9
for further information.
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6. DERIVATIVES

The Company's contracts with its customers and its liquidity providers are deemed to be derivative instruments. The table below represents the fair values
of the Company’s derivative instruments reported within Receivables from brokers, Pavables to customers and Payables to brokers on the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets (amounts in thousands):

Derivative Instruments:

Foreign currency exchange contracts
CFD contracts

Metals contracts

Total

Derivative Assets/(Liabilities:)
Receivables from brokers
Payahles to customers

Derivative Instruments:

Foreign currency exchange contracts
CFD contracts

Metals contracts

Total

Derivative Assets/(Liabilities):
Receivables from brokers
Payables to customers

Payables to brokers

December 31, 2019

Gross amounts of

Gross amount of

Net amounts of

assets for (liabilities) for assets/(liabilities)
derivative open derivative open for derivative
positions at fair positions at fair open positions at
value value fair value
97,075 % (40,704) 56,371
80,666 (43,642) 47,024
11,058 (4,395) 6,663
198,799 % (88,741) 110,058

December 31, 2019

Net amounts of
assets/(liabilities)
for derivative
open positions at

Net amounts of
assets/(liabilities)
presented in the

Cash Collateral fair value balance sheet
118245 5 (5,949) % 112,296
(1,045,270) % 116,007 (929,263)
December 31, 2018
Gross amounts of Gross amount of Net amounts of
assets for (liabilities) for assets/(liabilities)
derivative open derivative open for derivative
positions at fair positions at fair open positions at
value value fair value
3 100,158 % (20,382) 79,776
77,014 (21,220) 55,794
5,438 (3,748) 2,690
$ 183,610 % (45,330) 138,260
December 31, 2018
Net amounts of
assets/(liabilities) Net amounts of
for derivative assets/(liabilities)
open positions at presented in the
Cash Collateral fair value balance sheet
91,908 § (7,637) 84,271
$ (986,918) % 144440 % (B42,478)
(3,092) % 1,457 (1,635)

The Company’s derivatives include different underlyings which vary in price. Foreign exchange contracts typically have prices less than two dollars, while
certain metals contracts and CFDs can have considerably higher prices. The amounts reported
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within Receivables from brokers, Payvables to customers, and Payables to brokers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are derived from the notional
contract numbers below (amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2019

Total contracts in long  Total contracts in short

positions positions
Derivative Instruments:
Fareign currency exchange contracts 3,418,117 3,342,201
CFD contracts 115,527 23,320
Metals contracts 471 233
Total 3,534,115 3,365,754
December 31, 2018
Total contracts in long  Total contracts in short
positions positions
Derivative Instruments:
Foreign currency exchange contracts 3,780,488 3,238,781
CFD contracts 98,840 134,546
Metals contracts 489 188
Total 3,879,817 3,373,515

The Company did not designate any of its derivatives as hedging instruments. Net gains with respect to derivative instruments reflected in Retail revenue in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as
follows (amounts in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Derivative Instruments:
Foreign currency exchange contracts 5 102,974 5 165,477
CFD contracts 61,644 112,640
Metals contracts 13,109 22,019
Total $ 172,727 % 300,136

7. RECEIVABLES FROM BROKERS

The Company has posted funds with brokers as collateral required by agreements for holding trading positions. These amounts are reflected as Receivables
from brokers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

Amounts receivable from brokers consisted of the following as of (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2019 2018
Required collateral $ 118,245 & 91,908
Open foreign exchange positions (5,549) (7,637)
Total 5 112,296 § 84,271
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B. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, including leasehold improvements and capitalized software development costs, consisted of the following as of (amounts in
thousands):

December 31,
2019 2018
Software $ 73,859 % 60,218
Computer equipment 14,675 13,790
Leasehold improvements 10,663 10,814
Telephone equipment 547 646
Office equipment 1,877 1,948
Furniture and fixtures 3,122 3,294
‘Web site development costs 635 635
Gross property and equipment 105,378 91,345
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (74,815) (60,766)
Property and equipment, net % 30563 % 30,579

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $17.1 million and $19.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

The Company wrote off certain property and equipment that became obsolete for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, resulting in an additional
charge of 50.3 million and $1.3 million, respectively. The additional charge was recorded in General and administrative expenses.

The Company retired fully depreciated property and equipment of $3.3 million and $8.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Intangible Assets
The Company’s various intangible assets consisted of the following as of (amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Weighted average Accumulated Accumulated
Intangibles remaining useful lives Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Customer list 5.0 years § 46576 § (32,510) $ 14,066 $ 58494 § (40,208) $ 18,286
Technology 2.3 years 24,626 (16,800) 7,826 49,430 (38,555) 10,875
Trademark 2.2 years 6,298 (4,390) 1,908 7,308 (4,637) 2,671
Total finite lived
intangibles 5 77500 5 (53,700) § 23800 § 115232 § (83,400) § 31,832
Trademarks not subject to
amortization 363 — 363 363 — 363
Total intangibles assets § 77863 3 (53,700) % 24,163 % 115595 & (834000 § 32,195

(1) These indefinite-life trademarks relate o the Forex.com and foreignexchange.com domain names where management determined there was no legal, regulatory or technological
limitation on their useful lives. The Company compares the recorded value of the indefinite-life intangible assets to fair value on an annual basis and whenever circumstances arise
that indicate impairment may have occurned.

During the yvear ended December 31, 2019, the Company retired $34.4 million of fully amortized intangible assets, which was an equal amount for both
gross and accumulared amortization and did not have any impact on the results of operations or cash flows.

Amortization expense for the purchased intangibles was $8.8 million and $14.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Future annual estimated amortization expense is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Xears Ended December 31,;
2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

Goodwill

7,219
7,141
3,925
2,782
2,200

533

23,800

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter and in interim periods when events or changes indicate the carrying

value may not be recoverable.

The Company operates under two reporting units: retail and futures. There were no additions to the carrying value of the Company’s goodwill during the

year ended December 31, 2019,

On February 26, 2020, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with INTL FCStone Inc. The sale is expected to be completed
subsequent to the end of the second guarter of 2020. As a result of the expected transaction, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $28.1 million
based on the agreed-upon sales price of $6.00 per share. The loss is recorded in Goodwill impairment on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Comprehensive (Loss)/Income. See Note 24 for more information. No impairment charges for goodwill were recognized during the year ended December

31, 2018 or any previous year.

The following represents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the year ended December 31, 2019 (amounts in thousands):

Carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2018
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Impairment

Carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2019

10. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Vendor and security deposits

Income tax receivable

Deferred tax assets, net

Right of use asset

Customer debit positions

Allowance on customer debit positions
Prepaid assets

Miscellaneous receivables

Deferred commitment fees

Total other assets

Retail Futures Total
$ 25435 § 2385 % 27,820
254 24 278
(25,689) (2,409) {28,098)
5 — % — 5 -
December 31,
2019 2018
5 3795 $ 6,964
5,394 383
25,306 13,217
15,011 —_
5,423 4,146
(4,125) (4,126)
9,115 8,323
3,969 7,111
124 337
5 64,012 % 36,355

-
fi

N
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The allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2018 b (1,959)
Addition to provision (2,508)
Amounts collected/written off 341
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ (4,126)
Addition to provision (2,024)
Amounts collected/written off 2,025
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ (4,125)
11. LEASES

The Company leases office space under agreements classified as operating leases that have lease periods expiring between 2020 and 2029, The Company's
leases do not require any contingent rental payments, impose any financial restrictions, or contain any residual value guarantees. Certain of the Company s
leases include renewal options and escalation clauses. Renewal options have not been included in the calculation of the lease liabilities and right of use
assets as the Company is not reasonably certain to exercise the options. The Company does not act as a lessor or have any leases classified as financing
leases.

In June 2019, the Company exercised its right to terminate its office space lease in London. The Company accounted for this change in termination date as
a modification and remeasured the value of the right of use asset and related lease liability on such date. This remeasurement resulted in a reduction of $3.7
million and $3.7 million to the right of use asset and related lease liability, respectively, during June 2019.

In November 2019, the Company entered into a new office space lease in London (the "new London lease") commencing in November 2019 (the
"commencement date"), with a ten year term expiring in November 2029. On the commencement date of the new London lease, the Company recorded an
operating lease liability and a right of use asset, respectively, of $8.7 million.

At December 31, 2019, the Company had operating lease liabilities of $17.7 million and right of use assets of $15.0 million, which were included in
Accrued expenses and other liabilities and Other assets, respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The following summarizes quantitative information about the Company's operating leases (amounts in thousands, except lease term and discount rate):

Year Ended
December 31, 2019
Lease cost
Operating lease cost $ 3,749
Total lease cost $ 3,749

Other information

Operating cash flows from operating leases 5 3,967
‘Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 4.4
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 7.5%

Maturities of the Company's operating leases, excluding short-term leases, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the year ended December 31, 2020 $ 4,308
For the year ended December 31, 2021 3,075
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2,660
For the year ended December 31, 2023 2,765
For the year ended December 31, 2024 2,119
Thereafter 7,833
Total 22,760
Less: imputed interest (5,046)
Operating lease liabilities at December 31, 2019 $ 17,714
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain officers and directors of the Company have personal funds on deposit in separate customer accounts with the Company. These accounts are
recorded in Payables to customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The aggregate amount of these funds was $0.4 million and $0.4 million at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

IPGL Limited, the majority selling shareholder in the acquisition of City Index, has a trading account with the Company which is recorded in Payables to
customers on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The aggregate amount of these funds was $19.9 million and $11.7 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

The net revenue generated by any individual related party was not deemed to be material in the twelve months ended 2019 or 2018, respectively.
13. RESTRUCTURING

The Company incurred $1.3 million and $0.8 million of restructuring expenses for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These
expenses reflected the cost of reducing global headcount following strategic decisions in 2019 and 2018. They are recorded in Restructuring expenses in
the Consglidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income, All restructuring liabilities have been paid as of December 31, 2019,

14. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

In March 2014, the Company acquired controlling interests in GAA and Top Third ("TT"). The Company purchased 55% of each entity, and the respective
sellers maintained a 45% interest, subject to immediately exercisable call options for the Company to purchase the remaining interests, as well as put
options for the sellers to sell their remaining interests in each entity to the Company that were to become exercisable in 2017, In December 2016, the
Company acquired an additional 24% of each entity. In connection with the purchase of these additional interests, the Company and the respective sellers
agreed that neither would exercise the call options or put options, respectively, with respect to the remaining interests prior to December 31, 2017, In
December 2017, the Company and the sellers of TT extended their agreement that neither would exercise the relevant call options or put options through
December 31, 2018.

In February 2018, the minority owners of GAA notified the Company that they were exercising their put option with respect to their combined 21%
ownership of GAA. In September 2018, the Company settled its purchase of the minority ownership interests in GAA for approximately $2.9 million. In
December 2018, the minority owners of TT notified the Company that they were exercising their put option with respect to their combined 21% ownership
of TT. The purchase of the minority ownership interest closed on February 1, 2019 for approximately $2.4 million,

In accordance with ASC 480-10-599-3A, Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities, non-controlling interests are classified outside of
permanent equity as their redemption is not (i) mandatory, (ii) at fixed prices, and (iii) exclusively within the Company’s contral.

Prior to December 31, 2018, the non-controlling interests were not classified as liabilities, because redemption was not mandatory or at fixed prices. The
non-controlling interests also were not classified as equity because redemption was not exclusively in the Company’s control. Therefore, the non-
controlling interests were held in temporary equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The table below reflects the non-controlling interests effects on the Company’s financial statements:

Redeemable non-controlling

interests
January 1, 2018 $ 4,411
Adjustment to the redemption value of non-controlling interests 816
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 737
Distributions to non-controlling interest holders (634)
Purchase of additional shares of non-controlling interest (2,906)
Reclassification to liabilities (2,424)

December 31, 2018 $ =
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15. REVOLVING CREDIT ARRANGEMENT

On August 3, 2017, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2017, for a three year $50.0 million senior secured first lien
revolving credit facility that was maturing in August 2020,

On January 2, 2020, the Company delivered written notice to terminate the Credit Agreement effective as of January 13, 2020 ("termination date"). There
were no amounts outstanding under the revolving line of credit as of the termination date nor as of December 31, 2019. The Company did not incur any
material early termination penalties as a result of the termination.

16. CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES
Convertible Senior Notes due 2022

On August 22, 2017, the Company issued $92.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2022 (the "2022 Notes"),
which amount includes the exercise in full of the over-allotment option granted to the initial purchasers of the 2022 Notes, in a private offering to qualified
institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.00% per year, payable
semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on February 15, 2018. The 2022 Notes are convertible into cash, shares of
the Company’s common stock, or a combination thereof, at the Company’s election, The Company currently intends to settle the debt in cash. The 2022
Notes will mature on August 15, 2022, unless earlier converted, redeemed or repurchased. The Company may not redeem the 2022 Notes prior to

August 15, 2020. The net proceeds from the Note Offering were approximately $89.0 million, after deducting discounts to the initial purchasers but prior to
taking into account any estimated offering expenses payable by the Company.

Prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding April 15, 2022, the 2022 Notes may be converted anly upon the occurrence of
specified events set forth in the Indenture, On or after April 15, 2022, until the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the maturity
date, holders may convert their 2022 Notes at any time. Subject to the foregoing, the 2022 Notes are convertible at the option of the holders and will be
settled, at the Company's election, by the payment or delivery of cash, shares of the Company’s common stock, or a combination thereof. The conversion
rate is initially 122.0107 shares of the Company’s common stock per $1,000 principal amount of 2022 Notes (equivalent to an initial conversion price of
approximately $8.20 per share of common stock). The conversion rate and the corresponding conversion price have not changed since inception but will be
subject to adjustment in some circumstances described in the Indenture.

If the Company undergaoes a fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture), holders may require the Company to repurchase for cash all or part of their
2022 Notes at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2022 Notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but
excluding, the fundamental change repurchase date. In addition, in certain circumstances, the Company may be required to increase the conversion rate for
any 2022 Notes converted in connection with a make-whole fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture).

The Company may not redeem the 2022 Notes prior to August 15, 2020. On and after August 15, 2020, and prior to the maturity date, the Company may
redeem for cash all, but not less than all, of the 2022 Notes if the last reported sale price of its common stock equals or exceeds 130% of the applicable
conversion price for at least 20 trading days, whether or not consecutive, during the 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day
immediately preceding the date the Company delivers notice of the redemption. The redemption price will equal 100% of the principal amount of the 2022
Notes to be redeemed, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date. In addition, if the Company calls the 2022 Notes for
redemption, a make-whole fundamental change will be deemed to occur. As a result, the Company will, in certain circumstances, increase the conversion
rate for holders who convert their 2022 Notes after the Company delivers a notice of redemption and before the close of business on the business day
immediately preceding the relevant redemption date.

Convertible Senior Notes due 2020

On April 1, 2015, as part of the City Index acquisition consideration, the Company issued to the sellers 560.0 million aggregate principal amount of
4.125% Convertible Senior Notes maturing on April 1, 2020 (the "2020 Notes"). These 2020 Notes pay interest semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 at
a rate of 4,125% per year, which commenced on October 1, 2015, During the fourth quarter of 2019, the Company repurchased approximately $1.5 million
of the 2020 Notes, for an aggregate purchase price of $1.3 million. The Company currently intends to settle the remaining debt in cash.

Prior to the date that is six months immediately preceding the maturity date, the 2020 Notes will be convertible only upon the occurrence of specitied
events set forth in the Note Indenture. Thereafter, until the close of business on the business day
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immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may convert their 2020 Notes at any time. The Company will settle conversions of the 2020 Notes by
paying or delivering, as the case may be, cash, shares of Common Stock or a combination thereof, at its election, The conversion rate for the 2020 Notes
will be egual to $1,000, divided by the initial conversion price, rounded to the nearest 1/10,000th share of Common Stock. The initial conversion price will
be equal to 125% of the arithmetic average of the daily volume-weighted average price for the Common Stock over the 20 consecutive trading day period
ending on, and including, the trading day immediately preceding the closing date; provided that the initial conversion price shall not exceed the greater of
(i) $9.25 and (ii) the last reported sale price of the Common Stock on the Closing Date; and shall not be less than $7.20. As of December 31, 2019, the
conversion ratio is 104.7344 shares of the Company's common stock per $1,000 principal amount of 2020 Notes (equivalent to a conversion price of
approximately $9.55 per share of common stock). The conversion rate and the corresponding conversion price will be subject to customary anti-dilution
adjustments, as described in the Note Indenture, including, but not limited to, Commaon Stock splits, Common Stock combinations, issuances of Common
Stock as a dividend on the Common Stock, issuances of options rights, warrants or other securities of the Company as a dividend on the Common Stock,
payment by the Company of any cash dividend in excess of $0.05 per guarter per share of Common Stock, and above-market tender offers or exchange
offers by the Company or its subsidiaries for the Common Stock. In addition, in certain circumstances, the Company may be required to increase the
conversion rate for any 2020 Notes converted in connection with a make-whole fundamental change as defined in the Note Indenture.

If the Company undergoes a fundamental change, holders may require the Company to repurchase for cash all or part of their 2020 Notes at a purchase
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2020 Notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of repurchase.

Prior to the date that is two years immediately preceding the maturity date, the Company will not have the right to redeem the 2020 Notes, During the two
year period immediately preceding the maturity date, the Company may redeem for cash all, but not less than all, of the 2020 Notes if the last reported sale
price of the Common Stock equals or exceeds 130% of the conversion price for the 2020 Notes for at least 20 trading days, whether or not consecutive,
during the 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day immediately preceding the date the Company delivers notice of redemption. If the
Company elects o redeem the 2020 Notes, holders may convert their 2020 Notes at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the redemption date.

The Indenture contains events of default customary for convertible debt securities (with customary grace periods, as applicable) and provides that, upon the
occurrence of an event of default arising from certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the Company, all outstanding 2020 Notes will
become due and payable immediately without further action or notice. If any other type of event of default occurs and is continuing, then the holders of at
least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding 2020 Notes or the trustee may declare all of the outstanding 2020 Notes to be due and
pavable immediately.

The indentures for the 2022 Notes and the 2020 Notes generally describe a ‘fundamental change® as (a) the consummation of a sale of all or substantially
all of the assets of the Company, (b) an exchange of the Company’s common shares for the rights to receive securities, property, other assets or cash from a
third party (excluding an exchange whereby the beneficial aowners of the Company retain 50% of the outstanding voting power of the surviving
corporation), (c) a shareholder-approved plan for liquidation or dissolution or (d) a delisting of the Company’s common shares. A ‘fundamental change” is
not considered to have occurred if at least 90% of the consideration received is common shares traded on the NYSE, The NASDAQ Global Market or the
NASDAQ Global Select Market.

An entity must separately account for the liability and equity components of a convertible debt instrument that may be settled entirely or partially in cash
upon conversion. The separate accounting must reflect the issuer’s economic interest cost. The fair value of the equity component, net of pro-rata initial
purchasers’ discounts, is included in the additional paid-in capital section of shareholders' equity in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, The
principal amount of the 2022 Notes and the 2020 Notes is reduced by unamortized original issue discount, which reflects the fair value at inception date.
The original issue discount will be amortized over the life of the 2022 Notes and 2020 Notes using the effective interest rate of 10.4% and 8.6%,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company 's common stock had not met the convertibility criteria nated in the offering memorandum far either the
2022 Notes or the 2020 Notes and, therefore, the 2022 Notes and 2020 Notes were not dilutive as of December 31, 2019 or 2018.
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The balances of the liability and equity components as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2019 2018
Liability component - principal $ 150,540 % 152,000
Deferred bond discount (13,081) (19,503)
Deferred financing cost (281) (388)
Liability compaonent - net carrying value $ 137,178 % 132,109
Additional paid in capital $ 39,554 5 39,405
Discount attributable to equity (826) (826)
Equity component $ 38728 % 38,579

Interest expense related to the Convertible Senior Notes, included in Interest expense on long term borrowings in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income, was as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Interest expense - stated coupon rate $ 7045 § 7,315
Interest expense - amortization of deferred bond discount and costs 6,499 6,225
Total interest expense - convertible notes 5 13,544 § 13,540

17. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Total share-based compensation expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following (amounts in
thousands):
For the Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018
Employee compensation and benefits $ 5052 % 6,038

On September 30, 2015, the Company s board of directors adopted the GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. 2015 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, (the
"2015 Plan"), which became effective November 30, 2015.

The 2015 Plan replaced the GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Flan, (the “2010 Plan”). The 2015 Plan has available 2.9
million shares for awards to employees, nonemployee directors, consultants, and advisors in the form of incentive stock options (“ISO"), nongualified
stock aptions (“NQSO"), restricted stock awards (“RSA"), time-hased restricted stock units (“RSU”), performance-based restricted stock units (“PSU™),
stock appreciation rights and other stock-based awards, The "evergreen" provision that allowed the Company to authorize additional shares to be issued
under the 2010 plan was removed from the 2015 Plan. Accordingly, the maximum number of shares that can be issued will be fixed and cannot be
increased in the future without shareholder approval.

Under the 2015 Plan, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee™) will determine the exercise price of the
options granted and may grant options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock in amounts as determined by the Compensation Committee, The
Compensation Committee may grant options that are intended to qualify as ISOs under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, or NQSOs which are not
intended to so qualify. ISOs may only be granted to employees. Anyone eligible to participate in the 2015 Plan may receive a grant of NQSOs. The
exercise price of a stack option granted under the 2015 Plan cannot be less than the fair market value of a share of the Company’s common stock on the
date the option is granted. All options granted under the 2015 Plan expire seven years from the date of grant,
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Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity under all plans for the year ended December 31, 2019 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Options Qutstanding
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Life (Years) Intrinsic Value

Outstanding January 1, 2019 955 % 6.05 232 § 932
Granted — —_ 0.00
Exercised (73) 3.83 1.16
Forfeited/Expired (193) 6.42 095
Outstanding December 31, 2019 689 § 6.19 166 $% 19
Vested and expected to vest options 362 $ 8.01 274 % 19
Exercisable, December 31, 2019 635 § 6.14 152 % 19
Fair market value of common stock at exercise date 5 295
Cost to exercise 281
Net value of stock options exercised s 14

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, was $0.0 million and $0.3 million.
During 2019, the Company had 0.1 million stock options vest. The Company received $0.3 million and $1.0 million from stock eption exercises during the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Company made no stock option grants during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock Awards

The 2015 Plan provides tor the issuance of RSUs that are convertible on a 1:1 basis into shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company maintains
a restricted stock unit account for each grantee. RSU grants typically vest evenly over three or four years, with the relevant percentage vesting on each
anniversary date of the grant. After the RSUs vest, the grantee shall receive payment in the form of cash, shares of the Company’s common stock, or a
combination of the two, as determined by the Company. Payment of cash and issuance of shares shall be made upon the vesting date, upon a predetermined
delivery date, upon a change in control of the Company, or upon the employee leaving the Company. The Company has historically settled these awards
through the issuance of common stock to recipients and intends to continue to do so, RSUs are assigned the value of the Company’s comman stack at date
of grant issuance, and the grant date fair value is amortized over a three or four year period.

In both 2019 and 2018, the Company issued RSUs with performance-based vesting in addition to the time-based grants. The number of shares issuable
upon vesting is determined by the Company’s achievement relative to certain operating performance targets established by the Company. Vesting is
contingent upon the recipient's continued service to the Company through the vesting period. A portion of these performance-based grants vest on the two
year anniversary of the grant date, with the remainder vesting three years after the grant date, The Company recognized expense for these performance-
based RSUs on the basis of the Company's best estimate of fair value as of December 31, 2019.

The Company granted 0.6 million time-based RSUs and 0.5 million performance-based RSUs in 2019, In 2018, the Company granted 0.5 million time-
based RSUs and 0.4 million performance-based RSUs,
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A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vested shares of RSUs as of December 31, 2019 and changes during the year ended December 31, 2019 are
presented below (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Number Weighted Average Number Weighted Average

of Time Grant Date of Performance Grant Date
Non-Vested Shares Based RSUs Fair Value Based RSUs Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2019 1,343 § 7.88 420 % 7.91
Granted 559 53.97 529 6.54
Vested (628) 7.55 — —
Forfeited (225) 7.55 (124) 7.33
Non-vested at December 31, 2019 1,089 § 7.08 825 § 712

The total grant-date fair value of time-based RSUs granted during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $3.6 million and $3.9 million,
respectively. The total grant-date fair value of performance-based RSUs granted during the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $3.5 million and
$3.3 million respectively.

As of December 31, 2019, there was $7.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the 2015 Plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately two vears.

Employee Stock Purchase Plarn

The 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) was adopted by the Company's Board of Directors on November 22, 2010. The ESPP became effective
on January 1, 2011. The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a 15% discount from the lesser of the fair
market value per share of the Company s common stock on the first day of the offering period or the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the purchase date. Funds are collected from employees through after-tax payroll deductions, The total number of shares reserved for issuance under the
ESPP was initially 500,000. It is intended that the ESPP meet the requirements for an “employee stock purchase plan” under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code. For the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, 101,260 shares and 74,204 shares were issued under the ESPP, respectively. The discount
on the ESPP of $0.1 million is recorded in Employee compensation and benefits in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive
{Loss)Income.

18. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic and diluted (loss)/eamings per common share is computed by dividing net (loss)/income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted (lossyeamnings per share includes the determinants of basic net income per share and, in addition, gives effect to the
potential dilution that would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised, vested or converted into common stock, unless
they are anti-dilutive. Diluted weighted average common shares include vested, unvested stock options, and unvested restricted stock units.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share excludes any shares of Company common stock potentially issuable under the Company’s convertible senior notes, which
are discussed in Note 16. Based upon an assumed trading price of 510 for each share of the Company’s common stock, and if the relevant conditions under
the indenture governing the 2020, and 2022 convertible senior notes were satisfied, there would be an additional 0.3 million, and 2.0 million dilutive shares
as of December 31, 2019 for the 2020 and 2022 notes, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the computation of (loss)/earnings per share (amounts in thousands except share and per share data):

For the year ended December 31,

2019 2018

Net (loss)/income from continuing operations $ (60,761) § 27,977
Less income attributable to non-controlling interests — 737
Net (loss)/income from continuing operations $ (60,761) % 27,240
Adjustment (0 — (816)
Net (loss)/income available to GAIN commaon shareholders from continuing operations $ (60,761) 8 26,424
Net income from discontinued operations — 65,649
Weighted average common shares outstanding;
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 37,388,984 43,731,881
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options — 250,726

RSUs/RSAs —_ 206,717
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 37,388,984 44,189,324
Basic (loss)/earnings from continuing operations $ (1.63) § 0.60
Basic earnings from discontinued operations $ — 5 1.50
Diluted (loss)/earnings from continuing operations $ (1.63) % 0.60
Diluted earnings from discontinued operations $ — % 1.49

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company concluded that the carrying value of the Company’s redeemable non-contralling interests
was less than their redemption value, requiring that an adjustment to the carrying value be recorded for purposes of calculating earnings per
common share, The adjustment to increase or reduce the carrying value will, respectively, reduce or increase earnings per common share by
reducing or increasing net income available to common shareholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, all common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share, because the impact
would have been anti-dilutive due to the Company's net loss during that period. The table below shows securities excluded from the dilution calculation
under the treasury stock method.

Year Ended December

31, 2015
Stock options 70,639
RSUs 40,396
Total securities excluded from diluted loss per share calculation 111,035

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2019, 0.5 million stock options were out of the money and excluded from the computation of diluted loss or earmings per share
from continuing operations.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters

From time to time the Company becomes involved in legal proceedings and in each case the Company assesses the likely liability and/or the amount of
damages as appropriate. Where available information indicates that it is probable a liability had been incurred at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the Company can reasonably estimate the amount of that loss, the Company accrues the estimated loss by a charge to income. In many
proceedings, however, it is inherently difficult (o

determine whether any loss is probable, reasonably possible, or to estimate the amount of any loss. Even where loss is possible or an exposure to loss exists
in excess of the liability already accrued with respect to a previously recognized loss contingency, it is often not possible to reasonably estimate the size of
the possible loss or range of loss.

For certain legal proceedings, the Company can estimate possible losses, additional losses, ranges of loss or ranges of additional loss in excess of amounts
accrued. For certain other legal proceedings, the Company cannot reasonably estimate such losses, if any, since the Company cannot predict if, how, or
when such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual settlement, fine, penalty or other relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings that are in
their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek substantial or indeterminate damages. Numerous issues must be developed, including the need to
discover and determine important factual matters and the need to address novel or unsettled legal questions relevant to the proceedings in question, before a
loss or additional loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding.

In November 2018, the Company settled on an ongoing contractual dispute with a service provider relating to the historical deployment of software
supporting one of the Company's legacy trading platforms. Pursnant to the terms of the settlement, the Company agreed o make a one-time settlement
payment of approximately $5.3 million in exchange for a full and final settlement of all claims.




20. INCOME TAXES

The following table presents the U.S. and non-U.S. components of (loss)/income before income tax (benefit)/expense for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018

us. $ (45,813) § 3,158
Non-1.5. (27.817) 33,333
Total (loss)income before tax (benefit)/expense $ (73,630) 5 36,491
Income tax (benefit)/expense consisted of (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018

Current
Federal $ 1,022 § 2,102
State (389) 1,253
UK. (3,134) 6,672
Japan 351 328
Australia 1,087 1,264
Other non-11.5. 254 90
Total current income tax (benefit)/expense (809) 11,709
Deferred
Federal (9,041) (2,330)
State (1,548) (711)
UK. (1,858) (599)
Singapore 436 548
Japan 167 70
Other non-11.5. (216) (173)
Total deferred tax benefit (12,060) (3,195)
Total income tax (benefit)/expense $ (12,869) $ 8,514

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities
and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when such differences
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are expected to reverse. The Company's net deferred tax assets are included in Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows (amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2019 2018
Deferred tax assets
Net operating losses $ 12,359 § 6,832
Share-based compensation 916 994
Intangible assets 9,683 4,291
Basis difference in property and equipment 4 462 4,262
Other 1,502 1,099
Total deferred tax assets 28,922 18,378
Valuation allowance (762) (904)
Total deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 28,160 17,474
Deferred tax liabilities
Discount on convertible note (2.854) (4,257)
Total deferred liahilities (2.854) (4.257)
Net deferred tax assets $ 25306 § 13,217

The Company has $61.7 million in net operating loss (“*NOL") carry forwards as of December 31, 2019. As of December 31, 2019, the Company has
NOL’s in the following jurisdictions: $27.8 million in the UK., $25.0 million in the U.S., $4.2 million in Singapore, $3.5 million in the Netherlands, tax
affected $1.1 million in various U.S. states, and $0.1 million in various minor jurisdictions. These NOLs begin to expire in 2025, The Company has a
deferred tax asset of $12.4 million relating to these NOLs for which it has established a valuation allowance of $0.8 million. The net change in the
valuation allowance is $0.1 million.

The following table reconciles the effective tax rate to the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate:

Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018

Federal income tax at statutory rate 21,00 % 21.00 %
Increase/(decrease) in effective tax rate resulting from:

State income tax 252 % 1.17 %
Foreign rate differential {1.16)% 0.07 %
Goodwill impairment (5.14)% — %
GILTI —% 10.75 %
Impact of non-controlling interests — % (0.42)%
162 (m) (0.42)% 1.32%
Uncertain tax positions — % (0.64)%
UK. bank tax — % 1.28 %
Rate changes 0.20 % — %
Foreign tax credit — % (9.22)%
True-ups and deferred tax adjustments (0.77)% (2.00)%
Other permanent differences 1.24 % 0.02 %
Effective Tax Rate 1747 % 2333 %
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In December 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.118 (“SAB 118”). SAB 118 allowed for the
recording of a provisional estimate to reflect the income tax impact of the Tax Act and provides a measurement period of up to one year from the enactment
date.

Due to the timing of the enactment and the complexity involved in applying the provisions of the Tax Act, the Company made reasonable estimates of the
effects and recorded provisional amounts in the financial statements as of December 31, 2017. Specifically provisional amounts were recorded in respect of
the provisions of the Tax Act that relate to mandatory deemed repatriation of untaxed foreign earnings, offset by current year losses and a foreign tax credit.
In 2018, the Company completed its review of the Tax Act, taking into account guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) and made
adjustments required to the provisional amount recorded as explained further below.

In 2018 and 2019, the Company had a number of discrete tax items that impacted its effective tax rate:

+  In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Company completed its income tax accounting for its U.S. tax liability with respect to its umaxed foreign
earnings, including the impact of foreign tax credits and state taxes, as a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, enacted on December 22, 2017,
within the measurement period. As a result, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $1.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2018.

+  In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Company elected to treat the new Global Intangible Low Tax Income (“GILTI") inclusion, resulting from the
enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, as a period cost. In 2018, The Company recorded tax expense of 50.6 million as the impact of GILTI, net
of applicable foreign tax credits.

+  In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Company received a favorable ruling from the U.S. competent authority in response to [ilings made by the
Company challenging an [RS transfer pricing adjustment for 2012. As a result of the ruling, the Company increased its previously accrued benefit
by an additional $0.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2018.

+  In fourth quarter of 2019, the Company impaired its goodwill, resulting in additional tax expense of $3.8 million.
In 2019, the IRS concluded an audit of the Company's 2015-2016 tax years with no audit adjustments.

At December 31, 2019, the Company asserts that the earnings of its foreign subsidiaries will be permanently reinvested in the working capital and other
business needs of the subsidiaries to the extent that repatriation of these earnings would trigger additional capital gains tax, foreign withholding taxes, or
material state income taxes. As such, amounts that can be brought back without triggering capital gains, foreign withholding taxes, or material state income
taxes will not be considered permanently reinvested. Based on the Company's analysis, the Company does not believe that the potential impact of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability associated with the repatriation of such earnings would be material to the financial statements.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no gross unrecognized tax benefits from uncertain tax positions.

There were no unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 that would affect the effective tax rate. The Company's open tax
years range from 2017 through 2019 for its U.S. federal returns, from 2017 through 2019 for the U.K., from 2014 through 2019 for Japan, and from 2016
through 2019 for its major state jurisdictions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of liability for unrecognized tax benefits could change during the
next 12 months. An estimate of the range of the possible change cannot be made until issues are further developed or examinations closed.

There were no penalties and interest recorded for the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and as such, there are no amounts recorded in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income. As a result, there is no impact to uncertain tax positions when reconciling the
federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate.

21. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company sponsors a “Safe Harbor” 401(k) retirement plan which was put into effect as of January 1, 2011, The plan provides for a 100% match by the

Company on the first 3% of the employee’s salary contributed to the plan and 50% on the next 2% with immediate vesting on all employer contributions,
subject to [RS limitations. Substantially all of the Company’s US employees are eligible to participate in the plan.
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The expense recorded to employee compensation and benefits on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss)/Income by the
Company for its employees’ participation in 401k plans during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $0.6 million and $0.9 million,
respectively.

22, REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The following table illustrates the minimum regulatory capital the Company's subsidiaries were required to maintain as of December 31, 2019 and the
actual amounts of capital that were maintained (amounts in millions):

Minimum
Regulatory Capital Excess Percent of
Capital Levels Net Requirement

Entity Name Requirements Maintained Capital Maintained
GAIN Capital Group, LLC $ 342 % 613 % 27.1 179%
GAIN Capital Securities, Inc. 0.1 0.3 0.2 300%
GAIN Capital UK., Ltd. 58.9 177.8 1189 302%
GAIN Capital Japan Co., Ltd. 1.0 1.7 10.7 1,170%
GAIN Capital Australia, Pty. Ltd. 0.9 55 4.6 611%
GAIN Global Markets, Inc. 0.4 34 3.0 850%
GAIN Capital-Forex.com Canada, Ltd. 0.2 23 21 1,150%
GAIN Capital Singapore Pte., Ltd. 3.7 11.8 8.1 315%
Trade Facts, Ltd. 0.5 3.8 3.3 760%
Global Assets Advisors, LLC (1) 0.0 1.2 1.2 2,667%
Total 5 999 §% 2791 % 179.2 279%

(1) The Global Asset Advisors, LLC minimum regulatory capital requirement is $45 thousand,

23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

ASC 280, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments.
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise which engage in business activities from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses
and about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker, or decision making group, in
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Reportable segments are defined as operating segments that either (a) exceed 10% of
revenue, or (b) report profit or loss in an ahsolute amount exceeding 10% of profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss or {c) exceed 10% of
the combined assets of all operating segments.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company completed its implementation of global support groups in the areas of finance, legal, human
resources, and wreasury. These groups are now centrally managed and support all business functions. Therefore, all costs related to these groups previously
recorded within the retail segment are now classified in the corporate and other segment to better align the cost reporting. The change in segment reporting
had no impact on the net profit or loss of the Company.

Retail Segment

Business in the retail segment is conducted primarily through the Company’'s FOREX .com and City Index brands. The Company provides its retail
customers around the world with access to over 15,000 global financial markets, including spot forex, precious metals and CFDs on commodities, indices,
individual equities, cryptocurrencies, bonds and interest rate products, as well as OTC options on forex. In the UK., the Company also offer spread bets,
which are investment products similar to CFDs, but that offer more favorable tax treatment to residents of that country.

Futures Segment

The futures segment offers execution and related services for exchange-traded futures and futures options on major U.S. and European exchanges. The
Company offers futures services through its subsidiaries, GAIN Capital Group, LLC, Global Asset Advisors, LLC, and Top Third Ag Marketing, LLC,
under the GAIN Capital Futures brand.

Corporate and other

Corporate and other provides general corporate services to the Company’s segments. Corpaorate and other revenue primarily comprises foreign currency
transaction gains and losses,
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Selected financial information by segment is presented in the following tables (amounts in thousands):

Retail reportable segment:
Net revenue

Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing

Referral fees

Other operating expenses

Segment profit

Futures reportable segment:
Net revenue

Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing

Referral fees

Other operating expenses

Segment profit

Corporate and other:
Other loss

Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing

Other operating expenses

Loss

TOTAL SEGMENT (LOSS)/PROFIT

Depreciation and amortization
Purchased intangible amortization
Restructuring expenses

Goodwill impairment

Impairment of investment

Legal settlement

Class action settlement

Dutch auction fees

PP&E write-off

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT
Interest expense on long term borrowings

(LOSSYINCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (BENEFITYEXPENSE
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Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018
194,256 310,984
49,565 55,447
37,527 35,378
18,232 26,899
68,750 72,747
20,182 120,513
39,771 43,967
9,531 9,868
865 811
11,073 13,127
12,567 13,989
5,735 6,172
(95) {2,392)
19,030 23,756
3 271
11,606 13,770
(30,734) (40,189)
(4,817) 86,496
17,086 19,654
8,811 14,171
1,274 762
28,098 —
— (130)
— 5,306
— (5,398)
- 768
— 1,332
(60,086) 50,031
13,544 13,540
(73,630) 36,491
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The following table presents net revenue by geographic area (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018
Net Revenuel!;
North Americal® $ 178,549 § 164,040
Europe'®) 47,843 129,807
Other 7,540 64,110
Tatal Net Revenue b 233932 § 357,957

(1) - Net revenue is attributed to individual countries based on the jurisdiction of the formation of the reporting entity that records the transaction.
(2) - Includes 11.5. net revenue of $116.3 million and $143.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
(3) - Includes U.K. net revenue of $47.7 million and $129.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The following table presents long-lived assets by geographic area (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2019 2018
Long-lived assetst:
North Americat® s 7581 % 8,875
Europe'® 22,825 21,427
Other 157 277
Total long-lived assets 5 30563 § 30,579

(1) - Long-lived assets are comprised of property and equipment, net. They exclude goodwill, other intangible assets and other assets, which are not attributable to any one
geographic location,

(2) = Includes U.S. long-lived assets of $7.6 million and $8.9 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(3) - Includes UK. long-lived assets of $22.3 million and 321.4 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2020, the Company announced the payment of a $0.06 dividend per share of Common Stock payable on March 27, 2020 to stockholders of
record on March 24, 2020.

On February 26, 2020, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with INTL FCStone Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“INTL") and Golf Merger Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL (“Merger Sub™), pursuant to which,
among other things and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of specified conditions, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "Merger"). As
a result of the Merger, Merger Sub will cease to exist, and the Company will survive as a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL. Subject to the terms and
conditions of the Merger Agreement at the effective time of the Merger (the Effective Time"), each share of the Company's common stock issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than dissenting shares) will be converted into the right to receive $6.00 per share in cash,
without interest.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

= QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2020
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period from to

Commission File Number 001-35008

GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 20-4568600
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S, Employer
incorporation or erganization) Identification No.)

Bedminster One
135 Route 202/206
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (908) 731-0700
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:
Title of each class Trading Symbaol Name on each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $0.00001 par value per share GCAP New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. & Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes [0 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer”, “smaller reporting company” and "emerging growth
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer 5]
Non-accelerated filer m} Smaller reporting company B
Emerging growth company O

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new
or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13{a) of the Exchange Act. [

Indicate by a check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). O Yes & No

As of May 5, 2020, the registrant had 37,803,800 shares of common stock, $0.00001 par value per share, outstanding.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1 - Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except share data and par value)

March 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 293,302 % 150,072

Cash and securities held for customers 785,223 929,263

Receivables from brokers 53,053 112,296

Property and equipment, net 29,052 30,563

Intangible assets, net 21,153 24,163

Other asseis 50,003 64,012
Total assets $ 1,231,786 $ 1,350,369

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY:

Liabilities

Payables to customers $ 785,223 § 929,263

Payables to brokers 5,895 —

Accrued compensation and benefits 6,439 5,462

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 44,969 43,129

Income tax payable 11,818 638

Convertible senior notes 80,334 137,178
Total liabilities b 934,678 § 1,115,670

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock ($0.00001 par value; 120 million shares authorized; 55.6 million shares issued and

37.8 million shares outstanding as of March 31, 2020; 55.3 million shares issued and 37.5 million

shares outstanding as of December 31, 2019) $ — 3 —

Additional paid-in capital 251,107 249,111

Retained earnings 209,825 134,752

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (36,307) (21,647)

Treasury stock, at cost (17.8 million shares at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019) (127,517) (127,517)
Total shareholders’ equity 297,108 234,699

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,231,786 % 1,350,369

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

REVENUE:
Retail revenue
Futures revenue
Other revenue
Total non-interest revenue
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Total net interest revenue

Net revenue

EXPENSES:
Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing
Referral fees
Trading expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Purchased intangible amortization
Communications and technology
Bad debt provision
Restructuring expenses
Transaction costs
Total operating expenses
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

Interest expense on long term borrowings
INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense/(benefit)
NET INCOME/{LOSS)

Other comprehensive (loss)income:

Foreign curmrency translation adjustment

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019

5 173,070  § 24,279
9,386 7.990

986 2,485

183,442 34,754

2,740 4,294

484 613

2,256 3,681

$ 185698 § 38,435
5 24,166 § 20,255
7,112 10,224

12,497 7.008

4,928 5,480

13,846 12,756

4,304 4,250

1,808 3,329

4,523 5,691

4,213 427

1,420 —_

1,043 —

s 79,860 S 69,510
105,838 (31.075)

3,442 3,332
$ 102,396 & (34,407)
25,052 (6,053)
$ 77344 § (28,354)
(14,660) 4,846
§ 62684 & (23,508)
$ 206 % (0.76)
5 206 S (0.76)
37,554,579 37,525,073
37,585,806 37,525,073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders” Equity
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

BALANCE—January 1, 2020

Net income applicable to Gain Capital Holdings, Inc.

Conversion of restricted stock into common stock
Share-based compensation

Dividends ($0.06 per share)

Foreign currency translation adjustment
BALANCE—March 31, 2020

BALANCE—January 1, 2019

Net loss applicable to Gain Capital Holdings, Inc.
Conversion of restricted stock into common stock
Purchase of treasury stock

Share-based compensation

Dividends ($0.06 per share)

Foreign currency translation adjustment
BALANCE—March 31, 2019

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

CammonSock Additional AQC;’:I];L:M
Outstanding Treasury Paid-in Retained Compreh
Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total
37,484,276 § —  ${127,517) 5 249,111 5134752 § (21,647) $ 234,699
= s ¥y s 77,344 e 77,344
302,920 — - — - — —
—_ —_ —_ 1,996 —_ —_ 1,996
— — — — (2,271) -— (2,271)
— — — — — (14,660) (14,660)
37,787,196 § — $(127,517) B 251,107 % 209,825 % (36,307) $ 297,108
Commun Stocls Additional G
Outstanding Treasury Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Stock Capital Earnings oss Total
37,821,686 % — $(120,516) § 243,216 § 204483 § (29,410) §$ 297,773
— == — = (28,354) e (28,354)
182,443 — —y — — e —
(632,796} — (4,201) — — — (4,201)
—= -— — 1,685 — — 1,685
| — = - (2,254) — (2,254)
— - - - — 4,846 4,846
37,371,333 § —  $(124.717) § 244901 $ 173875 §  (24.564) $ 269,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income/(loss) $ 77,344 % (28.354)
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Loss/(gain) on foreign currency exchange rates 674 (964)
Depreciation and amortization 6,112 7,279
Deferved tax expense/(benefit) 8,131 (6.695)
Amortization of deferred financing costs 149 149
Bad debt provision 4,213 427
Convertible senior notes discount amortization 1,547 1,422
Share-based compensation 1,996 1.685
Interest earned on investments — (629)
Amortizatien of right of use asset 987 524
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables from brokers 57,655 (11,932)
Other assets (2,480) 4,676
Payables to customers (119,590) 17.826
Payables to brokers 6,243 (1.635)
Accrued compensation and benefits 1,188 (7,990)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,965 (4,641)
Income tax payable 10,837 (4,025)
Long term securities 1,043 10,363
Lease liabilities (603) (703)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 59,409 (22,919)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (4,238) (3,126)
Purchase of minority interest — (2,422)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,238) (5.548)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Maturity and repurchase of convertible notes (58,5400 —_
Purchase of treasury stock (4,201)
Dividend payments (2,271) (2,254)
Net cash used in financing activities (60,811) (6,455)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (34,127) 11,068
NET DECREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH (39,767) (23,854)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH — Beginning of period 1,112,793 1,016,616
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH — End of period $ 1,073,026 $ 992,762
Cash and cash equivalents 293,302 218,019
Cash and cash equivalents held for customers (see Note 1) 779,724 774,743
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH — End of period S 1,073,026 & 992,762
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for:
Interest 5 3913 5 2,856
Income taxes 8 553§ 5,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GAIN CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company™), is a Delaware corporation formed and incorporated on March 24, 2006. The
Company is a global provider of trading services and solutions, specializing in over-the-counter ("OTC"), and exchange-traded markets, The Company
operates its business in two segments: retail and futures, The retail segment provides customers around the world with access to global financial markets,
including spot forex, precious metals, spread bets, and contracts for difference ("CFDs") on currencies, commodities, indices, individual equities,
cryptocurrencies, bonds and interest rate products, as well as OTC options. The futures segment offers execution and risk management services for
exchange-traded products on major U.S. and European exchanges, including Bitcoin. For more information about the Company’s segments, please see
Nate 17,

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments that, in management's opinion, are necessary to fairly
present the financial statements for the interim periods. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP™) and have been prepared in accordance with the regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC") for interim financial statements. In accordance with SEC rules, interim financial statements omit or condense certain
information and footnote disclosures, Results for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any other interim period or
full year. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 16, 2020.

Preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period, Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and available information
about current events and expectations about actions undertaken in the future. Actual results could differ materially from estimates.

Cash and Securities Held for Customers

Cash and securities held for customers represents cash and highly liquid assets held to fund customer liabilities in connection with trading positions and
customer cash balances. Included in this balance are funds depaosited by customers and funds accruing to customers as a result of trades or contracis. The
Company records a corresponding liability in connection with this amount in Payables to customers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of
March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, $5.5 million and $6.5 million, respectively, of total Cash and securities held for customers are invested in U.S.
government and agency securities, Such securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized and realized gains and losses included in Interest revenue and
Other revenue in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income/(Loss), as appropriate. In addition, the Company holds
certain customer funds in segregated or secured broker accounts. Legally segregated balances are not available for general use, in accordance with certain
jurisdictional regulatory requirements,

The table below further breaks out the Cash and securities held for customers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (amounts in thousands):

March 31,
2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents held for customers $ 779,724 § 774,743
Marketable securities held for customers 5,499 94,945
Cash and securities held for customers § 785223 § 869,688
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Non-Controlling Interest

In December 2018, the minority owners of Top Third Ag Marketing, LLC ("TT") notified the Company that they were exercising their put option with
respect to their combined 21% ownership of TT. The purchase of the minority ownership interest closed on February 1, 2019 for approximately $2.4
million.

Sale to INTL FCSione, Inc.

On February 26, 2020, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with INTL FCStone Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“INTL") and Golf Merger Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL (“Merger Sub™), pursuant to which,
among other things and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of specified conditions, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "Merger”). As
a result of the Merger, Merger Sub will cease 1o exist, and the Company will survive as a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL, Subject to the terms and
conditions of the Merger Agreement at the effective time of the Merger (the "Effective Time"), each share of the Company's common stock issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than dissenting shares) will be converted into the right 1o receive $6.00 per share in cash,
without interest. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company incurred $1.0 million of transaction costs associated with the Merger
Agreement. They are recorded in Transaction costs in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income/(Loss).

COVID-1%

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") a global pandemic. Concern over the economic impact
this would cause drove volatility to extraordinary levels, resulting in significant increases to average daily retail trading volumes and retail revenue capture.
These led to standout financial results during the first quarter, including record levels of both net revenue and net income. The Company does not believe
that there is any significant negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of March 31, 2020. The
Company is continuing to monitor developments relating to COVID-19 and is coordinating its operational response based on existing business continuity
plans and on guidance from global health organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices.

CARES Act

On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law B.L. 116-136, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") Act. The CARES Act,
among other things, includes provisians relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of employer side social security payments, net operating loss
carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications to the net interest deduction limitations, increased limitations on qualified
charitable contributions, and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property. It also appropriated funds for the SBA
Paycheck Protection Program loans that are forgivable in certain situations to promote continued employment, as well as Economic Injury Disaster Loans
to provide liquidity to small businesses harmed by COVID-19.

2. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Recently Adopted

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No, 2018-13, Changes to Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820), which improved the
effectiveness of disclosure requirements for recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. The standard removes, modifies, and adds certain
disclosure requirements. The Company adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2020 with no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The ASU sets forth a “current expected credit loss”
(CECL) model which requires the Company to measure all expected credit losses for financial instruments held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable supportable forecasts. This replaces the existing incurred loss model and is applicable to the measurement of
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost and applies to some off-balance sheet credit exposures. In February 2020, the FASB issued
ASU 2020-02, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), which amends the effective date of the original pronouncement for smaller reporting
companies, ASU 2016-13 and its amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods in fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2022. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of this ASU on its financial statements.
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In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes (“ASU 2019-12"), which
is intended to simplify various aspects related to accounting for income taxes, ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic
740 and also clarifies and amends existing guidance to improve consistent application. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on
its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. LEASES

The Company leases office space under agreements classified as operating leases, with periods expiring between 2020 and 2029. The Company's leases do
not require any contingent rental payments, impose any financial restrictions, or contain any residual value guarantees. Certain of the Company’s leases
include renewal options and escalation clauses. Renewal options have not been included in the calculation of lease liabilities and right of use assets as the
Company is not reasonably certain to exercise the options. The Company does not act as a lessor or have any leases classified as financing leases.

As of March 31, 2020, the Company had operating lease liabilities of $16.6 million and right of use assets of $13.5 million, which were included in
Accrued expenses and other liabilities and Other assets, respectively, on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The following summarizes quantitative information about the Company’s operating leases (amounts in thousands, except lease term and discount rate):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Lease cost
Operating lease cost $ 1,302 % 796
Total lease cost $ 1,302 § 796
Other information
Operating cash flows from operating leases 5 909 § 866
‘Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 4.3 years
‘Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 7.5%

Maturities of the Company’s operating leases, excluding short-term leases, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the nine months ending at December 31, 2020 5 3,316
For the year ended December 31, 2021 3,031
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2,565
For the year ended December 31, 2023 2,670
For the year ended December 31, 2024 2,064
For the year ended December 31, 2025 2,205
Thereafter 5,213
Total 21,064
Less: imputed interest (4,507)
Operating lease liabilities at March 31, 2020 5 16,557

4, REVENUE RECOGNITION

Futures Revenue

Futures revenue consists primarily of commissions and fees earned on futures and futures options trades that the Company executes on behalf of its
customers. The Company is not exposed to any market risk from this activity. The Company’s performance obligation related to futures revenue is trade
execution, which is satisfied on trade date. Accordingly, commission revenues are recorded on trade date,
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Disaggregation of Futures Revenues

The following table presents the Company's futures revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by customer and service type for the services
described above, as it relates to the futures segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Futures
Direct Customers (U S 3526 $ 2,556
Indirect Customers (2) 5,860 5,434
Other 764 1,420
Net Futures Revenue S 10,150 § 9,410

(1) Direct customers are all customers not classified as indirect
(2) Indirect customers are referred to the Company by introducing brokers
(3) Other revenue comprises interest and fees

Futures Contract Assets and Futures Contract Liabilities

The timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of payment. The Company records an accrual when revenue is recognized prior to payment
and when the Company has an unconditional right to payment. The Company records a contract liability when payment is received prior to the time at
which the service obligation is satisfied.

5. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received in exchange for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The guidance establishes a three level hierarchy that ranks the quality and reliability of information used in
developing fair value estimates for financial instruments. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority
to unobservable data. In cases where two or more levels of inputs are used to determine fair value, a financial instrument’s level is determined based on the
lowest level input that is considered significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are summarized below:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not considered (o be active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - Valuations that require inputs that are both unobservable to a market participant and significant to the fair value measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are transferred between levels during the period, fair values are ascribed as if the assets or liabilities had been transferred as of
the beginning of the period.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the reporting period and the
related hierarchy levels (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis
as of March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets/(Liabilities):
Cash and securities held for customers:

US treasury bills % 5499 $ — 5 — 8 5,499
Receivable from brokers:

Broker derivative contracts —_ (9,478) _ (9,478)
Other assets:

Customer derivative contracts — 2,698 = 2,698

10
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Certificates of deposit 178 — — 178

Other 158 — — 158
Payables to customers:

Customer derivative contracts — 146,446 — 146,446
Payables to brokers:

Broker derivative contracts — (9,561) — (9,561)
Total $ 5835 % 130,105 % — % 135,940

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis
as of December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets/(Liabilities):
Cash and securities held for customers:

US treasury bills $ 6542 % — 3 — 8 6,542
Receivable from brokers:

Broker derivative contracts — (5,949) —_ (5,949)
Other assels:

Certificates of deposit 178 — — 178

Other 152 —_ — 152
Payables to customers:

Customer derivative contracts — 116,007 — 116,007
Total b 6872 % 110,058 § — 5 116,930

The Company has not changed its valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of any financial assets and liabilities during the three months ended
March 31, 2020, nor has there been any movement between levels during the period.

Level 1 Financial Assets

The Company has U.S. Treasury bills and certificates of deposit that are Level 1 financial instruments that are recorded based upon listed or quoted market
rates, The U.S. Treasury bills are recorded in Cash and cash equivalents and Cash and securities held for customers and the certificates of deposit are
recorded in Other assets.

Level 2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company has customer derivative contracts that are Level 2 financial instruments recorded in Pavables to customers and Other assets.

The Company has broker derivative contracts that are Level 2 financial instruments recorded in Receivables from brokers and Payables to brokers.

The fair values of these Level 2 financial instruments are based upon directly observable values for underlying instruments.

Level 3 Financial Liabilities

The Company did not have any Level 3 Financial Assets or Liabilities as of March 31, 2020 or December 31, 2019.

Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

The table below presents the carrying value, fair value and fair value hierarchy category of certain financial instruments that are nat measured at fair value
on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (amounts in thousands).

Receivables from brokers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value, and the Company’s posted funds with brokers that are required as
collateral for holding trading positions, which are not measured at fair value but approximate fair value, because they are cash balances that the Company

may withdraw at its discretion. Settlement would be expected to occur within a relatively short period of time once a withdrawal is initiated.

11
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Other assets includes receivables from certain customers. Some of these customers maintain open trades, which are measured at fair value, along with
accumulated losses that result in the receivable balances. These accumulated losses are not measured at fair value, but approximate fair value, because they

are balances that the Company expects its customers to recover through their trading activities or by funding activities in a relatively short period of time.

Payables to customers comprise open rades, which are measured at fair value, and customer deposits that the Company holds for its role as clearing
broker. These deposits are not measured at fair value, but approximate fair value, because they are cash balances that the Company or its customers can

settle at either party’s discretion. Such settlement would occur within a relatively short period of time once a withdrawal is initiated.

Payables to brokers comprise open trades, which are measured at fair value and the cash due to brokers. The cash within this balance is not measured at fair
value but does approximate fair value, because it is immediately payable to the brokers. Settlement with brokers generally occurs as soon as a broker

initiates a margin call.

The carrying value of Convertible senior notes represents the notes’ principal amounts net of unamortized discount (please refer to Note 12). The Company

assessed the notes” fair value as determined by current Company-specific and risk free interest rates as of the balance sheet date,

As of March 31, 2020 Fair Value Measurements using:
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Carrying Value Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets:
Receivables from brokers $ 62,531 § 62,531 & — % 62,531 % =
Receivables from customers 5 703 0§ 703 0§ — 5 703 % —
Financial Liabilities:
Payables to customers $ 931,669 § 931,669 $ — 5 931,669 § —
Payables to brokers $ (3,666) § (3,666) % — 8 (3,666) $ —
Convertible senior notes $ 80,334 $§ 89,240 § —  § 89,240 § —
As of December 31, 2019 Fair Value Measurements using:
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Carrying Value Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets:
Receivables from brokers $ 118,245 § 118,245 § — % 118,245 § —
Financial Liabilities:
Payables to customers $ 1,045270  §  1,045270 § — 5 1,045270 % —_
Convertible senior notes 5 137,148 & 141,501 % — & 141,501 —

6. DERIVATIVES

The Company’s contracts with its customers and its liquidity providers are deemed (o be derivative instruments. The table below represents the fair values
of the Company's derivative instruments reported within Receivables from brokers, Other assets, Payables to customers, and Payables to brokers on the

accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (amounts in thousands):
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Derivative Instruments:

Foreign currency exchange contracts
CFD contracts

Metals contracts

Total

Derivative Assets/(Liabilities):
Receivables from brokers
Receivables from customers
Payables to customers

Payables to brokers

Derivative Instruments:

Foreign currency exchange contracts
CFD contracts

Metals contracts

Total

Derivative Assets/(Liabilities):
Receivables from brokers

Payables to customers

March 31, 2020

Gross amounts of Gross amount of Net amounts of
assets for (liabilities) for assets/(liabilities)
derivative open derivative open for derivative
positions at fair positions at fair open positions at
value fair value
¥ 100,068 (43,099) % 56,969
119,344 (50,475) 68,869
6,483 (2,216) 4,267
$ 225,895 (95,790) § 130,105
March 31, 2020
Net amounts of
assets/(liabilities) Net amounts of
for derivative assets/(liabilities)
open positions at presented in the
Cash Collateral fair value balance sheet
b 62,531 § (9,478) % 53,053
5 703 $ 2698 § 3,401
§ (931,669) $ 146,446 §$ (785,223)
$ 3666 3% (9,561) % (5,895)
December 31, 2019
Gross amounts of Gross amount of Net amounts of
assets for (liabilities) for assets/(liabilities)
derivative open derivative open for derivative
positions at fair positions at fair open positions at
value fair value
3 97,075 (40,704) $ 56,371
90,666 (43,642) 47,024
11,058 (4,393) 6,663
3 198,799 (88,741) $ 110,058
December 31, 2019
Net amounts of
assets/(liabilities) Net amounts of
for derivative assets/(liabilities)
open positions at presented in the
Cash Collateral fair value balance sheet
3 118,245 (5.949) § 112,296
5 (1,045,270) % 116,007 § (929,263)

The Company’s derivatives include different underlyings, which vary in price. Foreign exchange contracts typically have prices less than two dollars, while
certain metals contracts and CFDs can have considerably higher prices. The amounts reported within Receivables from brokers, Other assets, Payables to
customers, and Payables to brokers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets are derived from the number of contracts below (amounts in

thousands):

13
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March 31, 2020
Total contracts in long  Total contracts in short
positions positions

Derivative Instruments:
Foreign currency exchange contracts 3,193,529 2,980,498
CFD contracts 75,807 54,415
Metals contracts 187 126
Total 3,269,523 3,035,039

December 31, 2019
Total contracts in long  Total contracts in short

positions positions
Derivative Instruments:
Foreign currency exchange contracts 3,418,117 3,342,201
CFD contracts 115,527 23,320
Metals contracts 471 233
Total 3,534,115 3,365,754

The Company did not designate any of its derivatives as hedging instruments. Net gains with respect to derivative instruments reflected in Retail revenue in
the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and
2019 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Derivative Instruments:
Foreign currency exchange contracts 5 76,677 % 16,137
CFD contracts 83,543 5,938
Metals contracts 12,850 2,204
Total 5 173,070 % 24,279

7. RECEIVABLES FROM BROKERS

The Company has posted funds with brokers as collateral required by agreements for holding trading positions. These amounts are reflected as Receivables
from brokers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts receivable from brokers consisted of the following as of (amounts in thousands):

March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Required collateral $ 62531 § 118,245
Open foreign exchange positions (9,478) (5,949)
Total $ 53,053 % 112,296
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Company's various intangible assets consisted of the following as of (amounts in thousands):

March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Weighted average Accumulated Accumulated

Intangibles remaining useful lives  Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Customer lists 4.7 years § 44617 § (31977) § 12640 % 46576 § (32510) $ 14,066
Technology 2.0 years 23,208 (16,649) 6,559 24,626 (16,800) 7,826
Trademarks 2.0 years 5,932 (4,341) 1,501 6,298 (4,390) 1,908
Total finite lived intangibles 73,757 (52,967) 20,790 77,500 (53,700) 23,800
Trademark not subject to

amortization (! 363 — 363 363 — 363
Total intangibles § 74120 8 (52,967) $ 21,153 $ 77863 3% (53,700) $ 24,163

(1) These indefinite-lived trademarks relate to the forex.com and foreignexchange.com domain names, which have no legal, regulatory or technological limitation on their
useful lives. The Company compares the recorded value of the indefinite-life intangible assets to their fair value on an annual basis and whenever circumstances arise
that indicate that impairment may have occurred.

As of March 31, 2020, future annual estimated amortization expense for the unamortized intangible assets is as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the nine months ending at December 31, 2020 5 5,068
For the year ended December 31, 2021 6,758
For the year ended December 31, 2022 3,774
For the year ended December 31, 2023 2,653
For the year ended December 31, 2024 2,075
For the year ended December 31, 2025 462
Total $ 20,790

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain officers and directors of the Company have personal funds on deposit in separate customer accounts with the Company. These accounts are
recorded in Payables to cusiomers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The aggregate amount of these funds was $0.4 million and $0.4 million
as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.

IPGL Limited, the majority selling sharehalder in the acquisition of City Index, has a trading account with the Company which is recorded in Payables o
customers on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The aggregate amount of these funds was $19.9 million and $19.9 million as of March 31, 2020
and December 31, 2019, respectively.

The net revenue generated by any single individual related party was not deemed to be material in any period.

At March 31, 2020, the Company had receivables of $0.2 million in the aggregate due from certain officers of the Company for taxes paid on equity
vestings. The Company recorded these receivables in Other assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. There were no receivables due from the
Company's officers as of December 31, 2019.

10. RESTRUCTURING

The Company incurred $1.4 million of restructuring expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2020. These expenses reflected the cost of reducing
global headcount following strategic decisions in 2019, They are recorded in Restructuring expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income/(Loss). All restructuring liabilities have been paid as of March 31, 2020. The Company did not incur any restructuring expenses for
the three months ended March 31, 2019.
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11. REVOLVING CREDIT ARRANGEMENT

On August 3, 2017, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2017, for a three year $50.0 million senior secured first lien
revolving credit facility that was maturing in August 2020,

On January 2, 2020, the Company delivered written notice to terminate the Credit Agreement effective as of January 13, 2020 ("termination date"). There
were no amounts outstanding under the revolving line of credit as of the termination date nor as of December 31, 2019. The Company did not incur any
material early termination penalties as a result of the termination.

12. CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES

On August 22, 2017, the Company issued $92.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes, due August 15, 2022 (the "2022
Notes"), and on April 1, 2015, the Company issued $60.0 million aggregate principal amaount of its 4.125% Convertible Senior Notes, due April 1, 2020
(collectively the "Convertible Senior Notes"). During the first quarter of 2020, the Company settled all remaining $58.5 million in principal amount of the
convertible senior notes due in 2020, for an aggregate purchase price of $58.5 million. The balances of the liability and equity components of the
Convertible Senior Notes as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Liability component - principal 5 92,000 % 150,540
Deferred bond discount (11,412) (13,081)
Deferred financing cost (254) (281)
Liability component - net carrying value 5 80,334 % 137,178
Additional paid in capital 5 39554 & 39,554
Discount attributable to equity (826) (826)
Equity component 5 38,728 § 38,728

Interest expense related to the Convertible Senior Notes, included in Interest expense on long term borrowings in the Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income/(Loss), was as follows {amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Interest expense - stated coupon rate $ 1,746 % 1,761
Interest expense - amartization of deferred bond discount and costs 1,696 1,571
Total interest expense - convertible senior notes $ 3442 % 3,332

13. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per common share are computed by dividing net income/(loss) by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings/(loss) per share includes the determinants of basic net income per share and, in addition, gives effect to the
potential dilution that would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised, vested or converted into common stock, unless
they are anti-dilutive. Diluted weighted average common shares include vested and unvested stock options and unvested restricted stock units.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share excludes any shares of Company common stock potentially issuable under the Company’s convertible senior notes, which

are discussed in Note 12, Based upon an assumed trading price of $10 for each share of the Company’s common stock, and if the relevant conditions under
the indenture governing the 2022 Notes were satisfied, there would be 2,0 million dilutive shares as of March 31, 2020, for the 2022 Notes,
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The following table sets forth the computation of earnings/(loss) per share (amounts in thousands except share and per share data):

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019

Net income/(loss) 5 77344 B (28,354)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 37,554,579 37,525,073
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 25,108 —

RSUs 6,119 _—
Diluted weighted average common shares oulstanding 37,585,806 37,525,073
Basic earnings/(loss) per share ] 206 §$ (0.76)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 5 206 § (0.76)

For the three months ended March 31, 2019, all common stock equivalents are excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share, because the
Company's net loss during the period, resulting in those being anti-dilutive. The table below shows securities excluded from the dilution calculation, under
the treasury stock method, during the three months ended March 31, 2019.

Three months ended March 31, 2019

Stock options 1) 169,981
RSUs 90,520
Total securities excluded from diluted loss per share calculation 260,501

(1) During the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, 0.4 million stock options were out of the money and excluded from the computation of diluted loss or
earnings per share,

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Matters

The Company records accruals for loss contingencies associated with legal matters when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount of the

loss can be reasonably estimated. If the Company determines that a loss is reasonably possible, the Company discloses the matter, and, if estimable, the
amount or range of the possible loss in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements or notes.

From time to time the Company may become involved in legal proceedings or be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Although the
results of such litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believes that the final outcome of these ordinary course matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results, financial condition or cash flows,

15. INCOME TAXES

The Company recorded an expense/(benefit) for income taxes of approximately $25.1 million and $(6.1) million for the three months ended March 31,
2020 and 2019, These amounts reflect the Company's estimate of the annual effective tax rates of 24.5% and 17,6%, for the three months ended March 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively, reflect the Company's estimate of the annual effective tax rate adjusted for certain discrete items, primarily the tax benefit

resulting from the CARES Act in 2020, Changes in the Company's effective tax rate arise primarily from changes in the geographic mix of revenues and
expenses, as well as changes to statutory tax rates.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when such differences are expected to reverse, Certain net deferred tax assets of the
Company are included in Other assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

16. REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The following table illustrates the minimum regulatory capital the Company's subsidiaries were required to maintain as of March 31, 2020 and the actual
amounts of capital that were maintained (amounts in millions):

Minimum
Regulatory Capital Excess Percent of
Capital Levels Net Requirement

Entity Name Requirements Maintained Capital Maintained
GAIN Capital Group, LLC $ 309 § 619 § 31.0 200%
GAIN Capital Securities, Inc. 0.1 0.3 0.2 300%
GAIN Capital U.K., Ltd. 50.4 167.0 116.6 331%
GAIN Capital Japan Co., Ltd. 1.2 9.1 79 758%
GAIN Capital Australia, Pry. Ltd. 0.9 5.5 4.6 611%
GAIN Global Markets, Inc. 0.7 3.3 2.6 471%
GAIN Capital-Forex.com Canada, Ltd. 0.2 2.0 1.8 1,000%
GAIN Capital Singapore Pte., Ltd. 35 6.8 33 194%
Trade Facts, Ltd. 0.5 3.6 3.1 720%
Global Asset Advisors, LLC (1 0.0 1.8 1.8 3,907%
Total $ 884 § 2613 § 172.9 296%

(1) The Global Asset Advisors, LLC minimum regulatory capital requirement is 545 thousand.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

ASC Topic 280, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, establishes standards for reporting information about operating
segments. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise which engage in business activities from which they may earn revenues and
incur expenses and about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker, or decision
making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Reportable segments are defined as operating segments that either
{a) exceed 10% of revenue, or (b) the reported profit or loss in absolute amount of which exceed 10% of profit of all operating segments that did not report
a loss or (c) exceed 10% of the combined assets of all operating segments.

Retail Segment

Business in the retail segment is conducted primarily through the Company’s FOREX.com and City Index brands. The Company provides its retail
customers around the world with access to over 15,000 global financial markets, including spot forex, precious metals, and CFDs on commodities, indices,
individual equities, cryptocurrencies, bonds and interest rate products, as well as (T'C options on forex. In the UK., the Company also offers spread bets,
which are investment products similar to CFDs, but with more favorable tax treatment for U.K. residents.

Futures Segment

The futures segment offers execution and related services for exchange-traded futures and futures options on major U.5S and European exchanges. The
Company offers futures services through its subsidiaries, GAIN Capital Group, LLC and Global Asset Advisors, LLC, under various brands.

Corporate and other

Corporate and other provides general corporate services to the Company’s segments. Corporate and other revenue primarily comprises foreign currency

transaction gains and losses.
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Selected financial information by segment is presented in the following tables (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Retail segment:
Net revenue % 176,279 % 28,159
Employee compensation and benefits 14,385 12,992
Selling and marketing 6,876 9,953
Referral fees 9,450 4,390
Other operating expenses 22,123 18,228
Segment profit/{loss) $ 123,445 $ (17,404)
Futures segment:
Net revenue $ 10,150 % 9,410
Employee compensation and benefits 2,864 2,164
Selling and marketing 236 260
Referral fees 3,047 2,708
Other operating expenses 3,149 3,221
Segment profit $ 854 % 1,057
Corporate and other:
Other revenue $ (731) % 866
Employee compensation and benefits 6,917 5,099
Selling and marketing — 11
Other operating expenses 2,238 2,905
Loss b (9,886) % (7,149)
TOTAL SEGMENT PROFIT/(LOSS) $ 114,413 § (23,496)
Depreciation and amortization $ 4304 % 4,250
Purchased intangible amortization 1.808 3,329
Restructuring expenses 1,420 —
Transaction costs 1,043 —
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 5 105,838 % (31,075)
Interest expense on long term borrowings 3,442 3,332
INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 5 102,396 $ (34,407)

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 23, 2020, the Company declared a $0.06 dividend per share of Common Stock payable on June 26, 2020 to stockholders of record on June 23,
2020.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

In this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the words “GAIN,” the “Company,” “our,” “we” and “us” refer to GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. and, except as
otherwise specified herein, to GAIN's subsidiaries. GAIN's fiscal quarter ended on March 31, 2020,

The following discussion of the financial condition and results of operations of the Company should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial
Data and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2020, and the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and
Nates thereto contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-(3 contains a number of forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the “Exchange Act”). These forward-looking statements are based
on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about the industry and markets in which GAIN operates, as well as management’s current
beliefs and assumptions. Any statements contained herein (including, without limitation, statements to the effect that management or GAIN “believes,”
“expects,” “anticipates,” “plans” and similar expressions) that are not statements of historical fact should be considered forward-looking statements and
should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in this report and the discussion below.
These staternents are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. There are a
number of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements. These factors
include, without limitation, those set forth in the section entitled “Item 1A - Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2019, and discussed elsewhere herein. The risks and uncertainties described therein and herein are not the only ones we face. We expressly
disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, except as may be required by law.

OVERVIEW

We are a global provider of trading services and solutions, specializing in over-the-counter ("OTC") and exchange-traded markets, We serve customers in
more than 180 countries worldwide, and we conduct business from our offices in Bedminster, New Jersey; New York, New York; Chicago, lllinois; Powell,
Ohio; London, England; Tokyo, Japan; Sydney, Australia; Shanghai, China; Hong Kong; Dubai, U.A.E.; Krakow, Poland and Singapore. We operate our
business in two segments: retail and futures. Our retail segment provides customers around the world access to over 15,000 global financial markets,
including spot foreign exchange ("forex"), precious metals trading, as well as contracts for difference ("CFDs"), which are investment products with returns
linked to the performance of underlying assets. We offer CFDs on currencies, commaodities, indices, individual equities, cryptocurrencies, bonds, options
and interest rate products, In the United Kingdom ("U.K."), we offer spread bets, which are investment products similar to CFDs, but with maore favorable
tax treatment for residents of the UK.

Owr futures segment offers execution and risk management services for exchange-traded futures and futures options on major U.5. and European futures
and options exchanges. Each of our operating segments is discussed in more detail below. For financial information regarding our segments, please refer to
Note 17 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As a global provider of online trading services, our results are influenced by a number of external market factors, including market volatility and
transaction volumes, competition, the regulatory environment in the various jurisdictions and markets in which we operate and the financial condition of
the retail customers to whom we provide our services, Additional factors may impact our results of operations for the most recent fiscal period, as well as
future periods, Please refer to “Part II - Item 1A, Risk Factors” for a discussion of other factors that may impact our business,

Market Environment and Trading Volatility

Our revenue and operating results may vary significantly from period to period because of movements and trends in global financial markets and
fluctuations in market volatility, which are driven by external factors, some of which are market specific and some of which are correlated to general
macroeconomic conditions. As a general rule, our businesses typically benefit from volatility in the prices of the products that we offer, as periods of
increased volatility often coincide with higher levels of trading by our clients and higher transaction volume, Periods of extreme volatility, however, may
result in significant market dislocations that can instead lead clients to reduce their trading activity. In addition, volatility that results in market prices
maoving within a relatively narrow hand of prices may lead to less profitable trading activity. Low or extremely high market volatility can adversely affect
our ability to profitably manage our net exposure, which is the unhedged portion of the trading positions we enter into with customers in our retail segment.
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For the three months ended March 31, 2020, significantly greater volatility than that in the comparative period resulted in higher volumes, which positively
impacted our financial results, relative to the comparative period. The higher volatility resulted from the various effects of the COVID-19 global pandemic,

Competition

The products we offer have generally been accessible to retail investors for a significantly shorter period than many other securities products, such as cash
equities. Our industry is rapidly evolving and characterized by intense competition. Entering new markets often requires us to lower our pricing in order to
attract customers and compete with other companies that have already established customer bases in such markets. In addition, in existing markets, we
occasionally make shont-term decisions to be more aggressive regarding pricing, or we may decide to offer additional services at reduced rates, or free of
charge, in order to attract customers and take market share from our competitors.

Regulatory Environment

In March 2018, the European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA") announced product intervention measures to further regulate the marketing,
distribution or sale of CFDs to retail investors in the European Union ("E.U.") These measures include leverage limits which vary based on the underlying
asset, a margin close out rule on a per account basis, negative balance protection on a per account basis, a restriction on incentives offered to trade CFDs
and a required standardized risk warning. These measures have now been published in the Official Journal of the E.U., and became effective on August 1,
2018, and have since been extended several times. The expectation was that in time the various E.U. regulators would introduce similar, permanent
measures in their own jurisdictions. In July 2019, ESMA announced that it would cease renewal of the measures. In August 2019, the U.K.'s Financial
Conduct Authority ("FCA") implemented regulations similar o ESMA’s existing temporary restrictions, but extended the restrictions to closely
substitutable products, including knock-out products and turbo certificates. Since then almost all E.U. countries have introduced permanent national
measures that are similar to the ESMA measures, These measures are not expected to have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition. Furthermore, the FCA released a consultation paper (CP 19/22) in early 2019 regarding a potential ban on the sale of
CFDs referencing cryptocurrencies to retail consumers. The consultation period is now closed and final rules are expected to be released in the second
quarter of 2020,

The Australian Securities and Investments Commission ("ASIC") recently announced proposed regulations for comment (CP322 Product Intervention
measures) that may result in new regulations that restrict the available leverage that may be offered to customers and provide for margin close-out
protection, additional risk warnings, prohibition on certain types of inducements, real-time disclosures and further transparency regarding the cost of
trading.

As a result of historical and/or future regulatory changes, we may be required to change our business strategy, including the nature of the products that we
offer, the target market for our products, or our overall strategy toward one or more geographic markets.

Part of our growth strategy is to enter new markets, and as we do so we will become subject to regulation in those markets. Complying with different
regulatory regimes in multiple markets is expensive, and in many markets the regulatory environment is unclear and evolving.

Sale to INTL FCStone Inc.

On February 26, 2020, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with INTL FCStone Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“INTL") and Golf Merger Sub 1, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL (“Merger Sub™), pursuant to which, among other
things and subject to the satistaction or waiver of specified conditions, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company {the "Merger"). As a result of the
Merger, Merger Sub will cease to exist, and we will survive as a wholly owned subsidiary of INTL. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger
Agreement at the effective time of the Merger (the "Etfective Time"), each share of the Company's common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior
to the Effective Time (other than dissenting shares) will be converted into the right to receive $6.00 per share in cash, without interest.

Business Environment

In early March 2020, COVID-19, a disease caused by a novel strain of the coronavirus, was characterized as a pandemic by the World Health Organization.
Since December 2019, most countries and territories worldwide have confirmed cases of COVID-19, including the U.S. and many other countries in which
we operate, Authorities around the world implemented numerous measures to contain the virus, such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter-in-
place orders and business shutdowns. The pandemic and these containment measures have had, and are expected to continue to have, a substantial negative
impact on businesses around the world and on global, regional and national economies. We do not believe that there is any significant negative impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of March 31, 2020. We are continuing to monitor
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developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating our operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from
global health organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices,

Key Income Statement Line Items and Key Operating Metrics

The following section briefly describes the key components of our revenues and expenses, our use of non-GAAP financial measures, and the key operating
metrics that we use to evaluate the performance of our business.

Revenue

We Ci]LEgOFiZE our revenue as retail revenue, futures revenuoe, other revenue, and net interest revenue.

Retail Revenue

Retail revenue is our largest revenue type. It consists primarily of retail segment trading revenue, which comes from a variety of products, including spot
forex, precious metals, spread bets and CFDs on currencies, commodities, indices, individual equities, cryptocurrencies, bonds, options and interest rate
products, as well as OTC options on farex.

We generate retail revenue in two ways: transaction based revenue and market value based revenue. Transaction based revenue comes principally from the
bid/otfer spread we provide our customers, financing charges for positions held overnight, commissions on equity CFD trades, and other account related
fees. Market value based revenue comes from net gains and losses generated through changes in the market value of the currencies and other products held
in our net exposure or realized during the period.

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, retail revenue represented 93.2% and 63.2% of our total net revenue, respectively.

For each of the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately 98% and 96% of our average daily retail trading volume was either naturally
hedged or hedged by us with one of our liquidity providers, and the remaining 2% and 4% of our average daily retail trading volume consisted of our net
eXposure.

We manage our net exposure by applying position and exposure limits established under our risk-management policies and by continuous, active
monitoring by our trading and risk teams. Based on our risk management policies and procedures, over time a portion of our net exposure will be hedged
with our liquidity providers. Although we do not actively initiate proprietary market positions in anticipation of future movements in the relative prices of
the products we offer, through our net exposure we are likely to have open positions in various producis at any given time. In the event of unfavorable
market movements, we may experience losses on such positions. Please refer to “Our Retail Segment - Sophisticated risk management™ in Item 1.
Business, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 for further details regarding our risk management policies for
the retail segment.

Futures Revenue

Futures revenue consists primarily of commissions and fees earned on futures and futures options trades that we execute for our customers, who use our
connections to clearers, data feeds, and trading tools. We are not exposed to any market risk in connection with this activity, though we do experience credit
risk with our counterparties.

Other Revenue

Other revenue primarily comprises foreign currency translation gains and losses, as well as inactivity fees.

Net Interest Revenue

Met interest revenue consists primarily of the revenue generated by our cash and customer cash held at banks and on deposit as collateral with our liquidity
providers as well as U.S. Treasury bills, less interest paid to our customers.

Our cash and customer cash is generally invested in highly liquid securities, like U.S Treasury bills, or money market instruments. Interest paid to

customers is determined by a variety of factors, including net account value, which equals cash on deposit plus the mark-to-market of open positions as of
the measurement date. Interest income and interest expense are recorded when earned and incurred, respectively.
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Expenses
Our expenses principally comprise the following:

Emplovee Compensation and Benefits

Employee compensation and benefits includes salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, contributions to benefit programs and other
related employee costs.

Selling and Marketing

Our marketing strategy employs a combination of direct online marketing and focused branding programs, with the goal of raising awareness, cosi-
effectively acquiring customers for our products and services, as well as client engagement and retention.

Referral Fees

Introducing brokers direct customers to us in return for referral fees on each referred customer’s trading volume or a share of net revenue generated by each
referred customer’s trading activity. White label partners offer our trading services to their customers under their own brand. Like introducing brokers,
White label partners charge referral fees for the trade flow they bring to us. Referral fees also includes payments made to affiliates for referring customer to
us.

Referral fees are largely variable and change principally based on the level of customer trading volume directed to us from our white label partners and
introducing brokers, the terms of our specific agreements with white label partners and introducing brokers and the relative percentage of trading volume
generated from particular relationships in any given period. The majority of our white label and introducing broker partners are paid for the trading volume
generated by the customers they introduce, directly or indirectly, to us, rather than on a revenue sharing basis. During periods in which referred customer
trading activity is not profitable for us, if the associated trading volume remains high, we may be required to make large payments despite generating lower
revenue from customers introduced. Qur retail indirect business accounted for 20.9% and 21.8% of retail trading volume in the three months ended March
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Trading Expenses

Trading expenses consist of clearing costs, fees paid for market data that we provide to our customers or use to create our own derived data products, as
well as fees for news services.

General and Administrative
General and administrative expenses consist of bank fees, professional fees, occupancy and equipment and other miscellaneous expenses.
Depreciation and Amartization

Depreciation and amortization is expense for physical assets and software purchased for use over a period of several years, as well as amortization of
internally developed software, which forms the majority of the expense.

Purchased Intangible Amartization

Purchased intangible amortization consists of amortization related to intangible assets connected with our acquisitions. The principal intangible assets
acquired are technology, customer relationships, and trademarks. These intangible assets have initial useful lives ranging from one year to ten years.

Communications and Technology

Communications and technology consists of communication fees, data fees, non-capitalized product development, software and maintenance expenses.
These costs serve a number of purposes, including general maintenance for our trading platforms and global communications.

Bad Debt Provision

Bad debt provision represents the amounts estimated for the uncollectibility of certain outstanding balances during the period.
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Restructuring Expenses

During the three months ended March 31, 2020 we incurred restructuring expenses, which reflected costs arising from headcount reductions and other exit
costs, measured and disclosed in accordance with FASB ASC 420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations and ASC 712 Compensation - Nonretirement
Postemployment Benefits.

Transaction Costs

During the three months ended March 31, 2020 we incurred transaction related expenses with respect to the sale to INTL, which include legal, accounting
and investment banking fees.

Interest Expense on Long Term Borrowings

Interest expense on long term borrowings consists of interest expense, both cash and non-cash on our 4.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2020 and
interest expense on our 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2022,

Operating Metrics
We review various key operating metrics, which are described below, to evaluate our business's performance.

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019

Retail

OTC Trading Volume (billions) (") $ 748.7 % 487.3
OTC Average Daily Volume (billions) 5 1.7 % i
12 Month Trailing Active OTC Accounts (2 132,841 120,641
3 Month Trailing Active OTC Accounts ) 87,349 70,051
Client Assets (millions) 5 597.1 % 652.6
Futures

Number of Futures Contracts ) 2,042,824 1,755,873
Futures Average Daily Contracts 32,949 28,785
12 Month Trailing Active Futures Accounts {2 7.146 7,387
Client Assets (millions) % 188.1 § 217.1

(1) US dollar equivalent of notional amounts traded
(2) Accounts that executed a transaction during the relevant period
(3) Futures contracts represent the total number of contracts transacted by customers of our futures business

OTC Trading Volume

OTC trading volume is the U.S. dollar equivalent of the aggregate notional value of OTC trades executed by customers in our retail segment.

OTC Average Daily Volume

Average daily volume is the U.S. dollar equivalent of the aggregate notional value of trades executed by our customers in a given period divided by the
number of trading days in the given period.

Active OTC Accounis

Active OTC accounts represents retail segment customers who executed at least one trade during the relevant period. We believe active OTC accounts is an
important operating metric because it correlates to trading volume and revenue in our retail segment.

Client Assets

Client assets represent amounts due to clients in our retail and futures segments, including customer deposits and unrealized gains or losses arising from
open positions.
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Number of Futures Contracts

Number of futures contracts represents the total number of contracts transacted by customers in our futures segment.

Futures Average Daily Contracts

Average daily futures contracts is the number of futures contracts transacted by our futures customers in a given period divided by the number of trading
days in the given period.

Active Futures Accounts

Active futures accounts represent customers who executed at least one futures trade during the relevant period.

We believe that our customer trading volumes are driven by eight main factors. Four of these factors are broad external factors outside of our control that
generally impact customer trading volumes, and include:

+ overall economic conditions and outlook;
= volatility of financial markets;

+  legislative changes; and

+  regulatory changes.

The volatility of financial markets has generally been positively correlated with customer trading volume. Our customer trading volume is also affected by
the following four additional factors:

+  the effectiveness of our sales activities;

+  the competitiveness of our products and services;

+  the effectiveness of our customer service team; and
*  the effectiveness of our marketing activities.

In order to increase customer trading volume, we focus our marketing and our customer service and education activities on attracting new customers and
extending the duration and scope of the relationship our customers have with us.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following period to period comparisons of our financial results and our interim results are not necessarily indicative of future results,

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019 § Change % Change
REVENUE:
Retail revenue § 173070 § 24279 % 148791 G12.8 %
Futures revenue 9,386 7,990 1,396 17.5%
Other revenue 986 2,485 (1,499) (60.3)%
Total non-interest revenue 183,442 34,754 148,688 427.8 %
Interest revenue 2,740 4,204 (1,554) (36.2)%
Interest expense 484 613 {129) (21.0)%
Total net interest revenue 2,256 3,681 (1.,425) (38.7)%
Net revenue $ 185698 § 38435 § 147,263 383.1 %
EXPENSES:
Employee compensation and benefits $ 24,166 § 20,255 § 3,911 19.3 %
Selling and marketing 7,112 10,224 (3,112) (30.4)%
Referral fees 12,497 7,098 5.399 76.1 %
Trading expenses 4,928 5,480 (552) (10.1)%
General and administrative 13,846 12,756 1,080 85%
Depreciation and amortization 4,304 4,250 54 1.3 %
Purchased intangible amortization 1,808 3,329 (1,521) (45.7)%
Communications and technology 4523 5,691 (1,168) (20.5)%
Bad debt provision 4,213 427 3,786 n'm
Restructuring expenses 1,420 — 1,420 100.0 %
Transaction costs 1,043 = 1,043 100.0 %
Total operating expenses $ 79860 § 69510 3% 10,350 14.9 %
OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS) 105,838 (31,075) 136,913 440.6 %
Interest expense on long term borrowings 3,442 3,332 110 3.3 %
INCOME/{LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX $ 1023% § (34407) § 136,803 397.6 %
Income tax expense/(benefit) 25,052 (6,053) 31,105 512.9 %

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 77,344 § (28354) $ 105,698 3728 %




n/m - not material or not meaningful

Revenues

Net Revenue:
Retail segment
Futures segment
Corporate and other
Net revenue

Three Months Ended March 31,
(amounts in thousands)
2020 2019 $ Change % Change
$ 176,279 § 28,139 % 148,120 526.0 %
10,150 9,410 740 7.9 %
(731) BE6 (1,597) (184.4)%
3 185,698 § 38435 § 147,263 383.1 %
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The increase in retail segment revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due
to an increase in volume and in revenue capture, both of which resulted from unusually high volatility during the three months ended March 31, 2020, The
wvolatility experienced within the quarter resulted in records in both currency and equity volatility indices, resulting from concerns over the global economy
arising from the COVID-19 situation.

The increase in futures revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to
increased contracts traded, reflecting slightly improved volatility, for equity products, oftset by decreased net interest revenue and a slight reduction in
agricultural product revenue.

The decrease in corporate and other revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to the impact of foreign currency revaluation.

Net revenue from each segment includes applicable net interest revenue, which decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2019, primarily due to a general decrease in interest rates over the past vear,

Expenses
Three Months Ended March 31,
(amounts in thousands)
2020 2019 % Change % Change
Employee compensation and benefits 3 24,166 § 20255 & 3911 19.3 %
Selling and marketing 7.112 10,224 (3.112) (30.4)%
Referral fees 12,497 7,008 5,399 76.1 %
Trading expenses 4,928 5,480 (552) (10.1)%
General and administrative 13,846 12,756 1,090 B.5 %
Depreciation and amortization 4,304 4,250 54 1.3 %
Purchased intangible amortization 1,808 3.329 {1.521) (45.7)%
Communications and technology 4,523 5,601 (1,168) (20.5)%
Bad debt provision 4,213 427 3,786 NM
Restructuring expenses 1,420 — 1,420 10000 %
Transaction costs 1,043 — 1,043 100.0 %
Total operating expenses 5 79,860 § 69510 % 10,350 14.9 %

The increase in employee compensation and benefits for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to an increase in expense from accrued incentive compensation, driven by significantly better results, during the three months ended March
31, 2020.

The decrease in selling and marketing expense for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to a planned reduction in spend for the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The increase in referral fees for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to the
increase in indirect volume during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The decrease in trading expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to our
cost optimization effarts, primarily in our retail segment.

The increase in general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to higher bank fees, which are driven by customer funding volume, higher spreadbet duty in the UK., and costs related to relocating the U.K.
office as part of our ongoing cost rationalization strategy.

Depreciation and amortization for the three months ended March 31, 2020 remained fairly consistent compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019.

The decrease in purchased intangible amortization for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019
resulted from certain assets being fully amortized between the periods.
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The decrease in communication and technology for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 resulted
from our cost optimization efforts which decreased software maintenance costs and related services,

The increase in bad debt provision for the three months ended March 31, 2020 resulted from an increase in customer positions becoming negative, as
compared to the prior period. These negative positions were caused by the greater volatility experienced in the quarter.

The restructuring expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2020 resulted from the strategic decision to reduce global headcount during the period.

The transaction costs for the three months ended March 31, 2020 were related to the sale to INTL FCStone, Inc. and included legal, accounting, and
investment banking fees.

Segment Results - Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2019

Retail Segment (amounts in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2020 2019 $ Change % Change
Net revenue $ 176279 § 28,159 § 148,120 526.0 %
Employee compensation and benefits 14,385 12,992 1,393 10.7 %
Selling and marketing 6,876 9,953 (3,077) (30.9)%
Referral fees 9,450 4,390 5,060 115.3 %
Other operating expenses 22,123 18,228 3,895 214 %
Segment profit § 123445 § (17,404) § 140,849 (B09.3)%

The increase in employee compensation and benefits expenses for the retail segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to an increase in expense from accrued incentive compensation, driven by better results, during the three
maonths ended March 31, 2020.

The decrease in selling and marketing expense for three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three manths ended March 31, 2019 was primarily
due to a planned reduction in spend for the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The increase in referral fees for the retail segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to the increase in indirect volume during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The increase in other operating expenses for the retail segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31,
2019 was primarily due to higher bank fees, which are driven by customer tunding volume, higher spreadbet duty in the U.K., and increased costs relating
to the exit of the U.K. office lease as part of our ongoing cost rationalization strategy, offset by lower trading costs and lower communications and
technology costs.

Other operating expenses for the retail segment include general and administrative expenses, communication and technology expenses, trading expenses

and bad debt.

Futures Segment (amounts in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019 § Change % Change
Met revenue $ 10,150 & 9410 § 740 7.9%
Employee compensation and benefits 2,864 2,164 700 323%
Selling and marketing 236 260 (24) (9.2)%
Referral fees 3,047 2,708 239 12.5%
Other operating expenses 3,149 3,221 (72) (2.2)%
Segment profit $ 854 % 1,057 § (203) (19.2)%

The increase in employee compensation and benefits expense for the futures segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to an increase in expense from accrued incentive compensation and commissions, driven by better
consolidated results during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The increase in referral fees for the futures segment for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019 was
primarily due to an increase in trading volumes for the three months ended March 31, 2020,

Both other operating expenses and selling and marketing for the futures segment were relatively consistent for the three months ended March 31, 2020
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019.

Other operating expenses from the futures segment include general and administrative expenses, communication and technology expenses, trading
expenses and bad debt.

Corporate and Other (amounts in thousands)




Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019 $ Change % Change
Other loss $ (731) § 866§ (1,597) (184.4)%
Employee compensation and benefits 6,917 5,009 1,818 35.7 %
Selling and marketing — 1 (11) (100.0)%
Other operating expenses. 2,238 2,905 (667) (23.0)%
Loss § (9,886) §$ (7,149) § (2,737) (38.3)%

The increase in employee compensation and benefits expenses for employees not attributed to any of our operating segments, for the three months ended
March 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019, was primarily due to an increase in expense from accrued incentive compensation
and commissions, driven by better results during the three months ended March 31, 2020,

The decrease in other operating expenses not attributed to any of our operating segments for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2019 was primarily due to a reduction in professional fees related to non-recurring legal and other professional services.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our liquidity and capital needs primarily with funds generated from our subsidiaries’ operations, issuing debt and equity
securities, including the 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2022 that were issued in the third quarter of 2017, and access to secured lines of credit,
though we have terminated our most recent credit line. We plan to finance our future operating liquidity and regulatory capital needs in a manner consistent
with our past practice. We expect that our capital expenditures for the next 12 months will be similar to our expenditures in the comparative period.

Our cash and cash equivalents and customer cash and securities held for customers are held at banks, deposits at liquidity providers, investments in money
market funds that invest in highly liguid investment grade securities including U.S. treasury bills, as well
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as investments in U.S. treasury bills. In general, we believe all of our investments and depaosits are of high credit quality and we have more than adequate
liquidity to conduct our businesses,

Several of our operating subsidiaries are subject to requirements of the regulatory bodies discussed below, including the CFTC and NFA in the U.S., the
FCA in the UK., the FSA in Japan, [IROC and the OSC in Canada, MAS in Singapore, ASIC in Australia, and CIMA in the Cayman Islands. Certain
regulations limit funds available for dividends to GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. As a result, we may be unable to access funds which are generated by our
operating subsidiaries when we need them.

Regulatory Capital Requiremenis

The following table illustrates the minimum regulatory capital our subsidiaries were required to maintain as of March 31, 2020 and the actual amounts of
capital that were maintained on that date (amounts in millions):

Minimum
Regulatory Capital Excess
Capital Levels Net

Entity Name Requirements Maintained Capital
GAIN Capital Group, LLC $ 309 § 619 % 31.0
GAIN Capital Securities, Inc. 0.1 0.3 0.2
GAIN Capital UK., Ltd. 50.4 167.0 116.6
GAIN Capital Japan Co., Lid. 12 9.1 7.9
GAIN Capital Australia, Pry. Lid. 0.9 L5 4.6
GAIN Global Markets, Inc. 0.7 3.3 2.6
GAIN Capital-Forex.com Canada, Ltd. 0.2 2.0 1.8
GAIN Capital Singapore Pte., Lid. 3.5 6.8 3.3
Trade Facts, Litd. 0.5 3.6 o |
Global Asset Advisars, LLC (1 0.0 1.8 1.8
Total $ 884 § 2613 $ 1729

(1) The Global Asser Advisors, LLC minimum regulatory capital requirement is $45 thousand.

Owur futures commission merchant and forex dealer subsidiary, GAIN Capital Group, LLC ("GCGL"), is subject to the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission ("CFTC") Net Capital Rule (Rule 1.17) and National Futures Association ("NFA") Financial Requirements, Sections 1 and 11. Under
applicable provisions of these regulations, GCGL is required to maintain adjusted net capital of the greater of $1.0 million or 8% of Customer and Non-
Customer Risk Maintenance Margin, or $20.0 million plus 5% of all liabilities owed to retail customers exceeding $10.0 million, plus 10% of all liahilities
owed to eligible contract participant counterparties acting as a dealer that are not an affiliate. Net capital represents current assets less total liabilities as
defined by CFTC Rule 1.17. GCGL's current assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents reported on its balance sheet as cash, receivables from
brokers and trading securities, which are generally short-term U.S. government securities, GCGL's total liabilities include payables to customers, accrued
expenses, accounts payable, sales and marketing expense payable, introducing broker fees payable and other liabilities. From net capital we take certain
percentage deductions or haircuts against assets held based on factors required by the Commodity Exchange Act to calculate adjusted net capital. GCGL’s
net capital and adjusted net capital changes from day to day. As of March 31, 2020, GCGL had net capital of approximately $61.9 million and net capital
requirements and haircut charges of $30.9 million. As of March 31, 2020, excess net capital was $31.0 million. We believe that we currently have sufficient
capital to satisfy these on-going minimum net capital requirements. In accordance with CFTC regulation 1.12 and NFA Financial Reguirements Section 1,
a 20.0% decrease in GCGL's net capital and a 30.0% decrease in excess net capital due to a planned equity withdrawal requires regulatory notification
and/or approval.

GAIN Capital Securities, Inc. (“GCSI”) is a broker-dealer registered with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. GCSI is a
member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA™), and Securities Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC™). Pursuant to the SEC’s
Uniform Net Capital Rule 15c3-1, GCSI is required to maintain a minimum net capital balance (as defined) of $0.1 million. GCSI must also maintain a
ratio of aggregate indebtedness (as defined) to net capital of not maore than 15 to 1. At March 31, 2020, GCSI maintained $0.2 million more than the
minimum required regulatory capital for a total of 3.0 times the required capital.

GAIN Capital UK. Litd. ("GCUK") is regulated by the FCA as a full scope €730k IFPRU Investment Firm. GCUK is required to maintain the greater of
approximately $0.8 million (€730,000) and the Pillar 1 requirement, which is calculated as the sum of the
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firm's operational, credit, counterparty, concentration and market risk. At March 31, 2020, GCUK maintained $116.6 million more than the minimum
required regulatory capital for a total of 3.3 times the required capital. Effective from 2016, the FCA began transitioning in additional capital requirements
in the form of a capital conservation buffer and a countercyclical capital butfer as set out in Capital Requirements Directive, or CRD IV, Article 160
Transitional Provisions for Capital Buffers. The transitional period began on January 1, 2016 and ended on December 31, 2018. The minimum comman
equity tier 1 capital ratio requiremnent, from January 1, 2019 is 7%. The firm maintained a common equity tier 1 capital ratio of 26.5% as of March 31,
2020. The effect of the countercyclical buffer on the firm's existing capital requirements is negligible.

GAIN Capital Japan Co., Ltd. (*GCIP”) is a registered Type | financial instruments business firm regulated by the Japan Financial Services Agency
(“FSA™) in accordance with Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended). GCJP is a member of the Financial Futures
Association of Japan, GCIP is subject to a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 140%, which is derived by dividing Net Capital (as deflined in Law No. 25)
by the sum of GC Japan's market, counterparty credit risk and operational risk. At March 31, 2020, GCJP maintained $7.9 million more than the minimum
required regulatory capital for a total of 7.6 times the required capital.

GAIN Capital Australia, Pty. Ltd, (*GCAU") is regulated under the laws of Australia, including the Corporations Act 2001 (Commonwealth of Australia).
GCAU holds an Australian Financial Services License that has been issued by ASIC. GCAU is required to maintain a minimum capital requirement of $0.9
million (1.0 million AUD) or 10% of average revenues. The regulatory capital held is required to be in excess of 110% of its requirements at all times. At
March 31, 2020, GCAU maintained $4.6 million more than the minimum required regulatory capital for a total of 6.1 times the required capital.

GAIN Global Markets, Inc. (“GGMI") the Company’s Cayman Island subsidiary, is a registered securities arranger and market maker with the Cayman
Islands Monetary Authority (“CIMA”). GGMI is required to maintain a capital level that is the greater of one quarter of relevant annual expenditure, or the
financial resources requirement which is the sum of the Base Requirement, counterparty and position risk requirement, or $0.7 million. At March 31, 2020,
GGMI maintained $2.6 million more than the minimum required regulatory capital for a total of 4.7 times the required capital.

GAIN Capital-Forex.com Canada, Ltd. (*GCCA”) is a Dealer Member of the Investment Industry Regulatory Organization of Canada (“IIROC™) and
regulated under the laws of Canada, including the Canadian Investor Protection Fund. In Canada, the securities industry is governed by provincial or
territorial legislation, and there is no national regulator. Local legislation differs from province to province and territory to territory, but generally requires
that forex dealing representatives register with applicable regulators and self-regulatory organizations in order to offer forex and/or CFD products to retail
clients. GCCA’s principal provincial regulator is the Ontario Securities Commission ("0SC"). GCCA is required to maintain risk-adjusted capital in excess
of the minimum capital requirement. At March 31, 2020, GCCA maintained $1.8 million more than the minimum required regulatory capital for a total of
10.0 times the required capital.

GAIN Capital Singapore Pte., Ltd. (*GCS”) is registered by the Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”) and operates as an approved holder of Capital
Market Services License. GCS is subject to the requirements of MAS and pursuant to the Securities and Futures Act (Cap 289), Under these rules GCS is
required to maintain a minimum base capital of approximately $3.5 million (5.0 million SGD) and Financial Resources in excess of 120% of the total risk
requirements at all times, which is calculated as the sum of operational, counterparty, large exposure and market risk at all times. At March 31, 2020, GCS
maintained $3.3 million more than the required minimum regulatory capital for a total of 1.9 times the required capital.

Trade Facts, Ltd. (“Trade Facts™) is regulated by the FCA as a BIPRU Limited License Firm. Trade Facts is required to maintain the greater of a base
financial resources requirement of approximately $0.1 million (€0.05 million) and a capital requirement of the higher of either credit risk plus market risk
or a fixed overhead requirement. At March 31, 2020, Trade Facts maintained $3.1 million more than the minimum required regulatory capital for a total of
7.2 times the required capital,

Global Asset Advisors, LLC ("GAA") is a registered Introducing Broker and is subject to the CFTC Net Capital Rule (Rule 1.17). Under applicable
provisions of these rules, GAA is required to maintain adjusted net capital of less than $0.1 million. At March 31, 2020, GAA maintained $1.8 million
maore than the minimum required regulatory capital.

Effective February 27, 2013, GAIN GTX, LLC became provisionally registered with the CFTC and NFA as a swap dealer. During 2016, GTX SEF, LLC
became permanently registered with the CFTC as a swap execution facility, although it withdrew its registration with the CFTC as a swap execution facility
on December 30, 2018. Certain of our other subsidiaries may be required to register, or may register voluntarily, as swap dealers and/or swap execution
facilities.

Swap dealers are subject to a comprehensive regulatory regime with new obligations for the swaps activities for which they are registered, including
adherence to risk management policies, supervisory procedures, trade record and real time reporting
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requirements, as well as proposed rules for new minimum capital requirements. GAIN GTX, LLC has faced, and may continue to face, increased costs due
to the registration and regulatory requirements listed above, as may any other of our subsidiaries that register as a swap dealer and/or swap execution
facility. In particular, the CFTC has proposed rules that would require a swap-dealer to maintain regulatory capital of at least $20.0 million. Compliance
with this or other swap-related regulatory capital requirements may require us to devote more capital to our GTX business or otherwise restructure our
operations, such as by combining our GTX business with other regulated subsidiaries that must also satisty regulatory capital requirements.
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Convertible Senior Notes

On April 1, 2015, as part of the consideration for our acquisition of City Index, we issued $60.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 4.125%
Convertible Senior Nates due 2020. These notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.125% per vear, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1
of each vear, beginning on October 1, 2015. The notes are convertible into cash, shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof, at our election,
subject to certain limitations. During the first quarter of 2020, the Company settled all remaining 2020 notes, $58.5 million in principal, for an aggregate
purchase price of $58.5 million.

On August 22, 2017, we issued $92.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2022, which includes the exercise in
full of the over-allotment option granted to the initial purchasers of the notes, in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.00% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and
August 15 of each year, beginning on February 15, 2018. The notes are convertible into cash, shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof, at our
election. The notes will mature on August 15, 2022, unless earlier converted, redeemed or repurchased. We may not redeem the notes prior to August 15,
2020,

An entity must separately account for the liability and equity components of convertible debt instruments whose conversion may be settled entirely or
partially in cash in a manner that reflects the issuer’s economic interest cost for non-convertible debt. The liability component of the notes is initially
valued at the fair value of a similar debt instrument that does not have an associated equity component, The liability is reflected in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets in an amount equal to the carrying value, which, as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, was $80.3 million and $137.2
million, respectively. The equity component of the notes is included in the additional paid-in capital section of our shareholders’ equity on our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the value of the equity component is treated as original issue discount for purposes of accounting for the debt component.
The equity component for our Convertible Senior Notes was $38.7 million as of both March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019. This original issue discount
is amortized to non-cash interest expense over the term of the notes, and, as a result, we record a greater amount of interest expense in current periods.
Accordingly, we reported lower net income in our financial results than would have been recorded had we reflected only cash interest expense in our
Condensed Consolidated Income Statement and Comprehensive Income/(L.oss) because GAAP requires the interest expense associated with the notes to
include both the current period’s amortization of the original issue discount and the notes' cash coupon interest, which could adversely affect our reported
or future financial results, the trading price of our common stock and the trading price of the notes.

In addition, under certain circumstances, convertible debt instruments whose conversion may be settled entirely or partly in cash (such as our 5.00%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2022) are currently accounted for using the treasury stock method. Under this method, the shares issuable upon conversion of
the notes are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share unless the canversion value of the notes exceeds their principal amount at the end
of the relevant reporting period. If the conversion value exceeds their principal amount, then, for diluted earnings per share purposes, the notes are
accounted for as if the number of shares of common stock that would be necessary to settle the excess, if we elected o settle the excess in shares, were
issued. The accounting standards in the future may not continue to permit the use of the treasury stock method. If we are unable to use the treasury stock
method in accounting for the shares, if any, issuable upon conversion of the notes, then our diluted earnings/(loss) per share could be adversely affected.

Credit Facility
On August 3, 2017, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2017, for a three year U.5. $50.0 million senior secured first lien
revolving credit facility that was scheduled to mature in August 2020. On January 2, 2020, the Company delivered written notice to terminate the Credit

Agreement effective as of January 13, 2020 ("Termination Date"). There were no amounts outstanding under the revolving line of credit as of the
Termination Date and the Company did not incur any material early termination penalties as a result of the termination.
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Cash Flow

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash tlow for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

2020 2019
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 3 59409 § (22,919)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,238) (5,548)
Net cash used in financing activities (60,811) (6,455)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (34.127) 11,068
NET DECREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH 5 (39,767) § (23,854)

The primary drivers of our operating cash flows are net earnings or losses, adjustments for non-cash gains and losses, such as depreciation and
amortization, as well as the normal movement of funds to and from our customers or to and from our liquidity providers.

Gains and losses related to customer activities, whether realized when a position closes or marked to market while still open, have no direct impact on cash
flows from operations. Cash flows related to customer activities arise from deposits and withdrawals only, which may disconnect cash flows from
operational results. To some extent, the amount of net deposits made by our customers in any given period is influenced by the impact of realized and
unrealized gains and losses on their balances, such that customers may be required to post additional funds to open new positions or maintain existing open
positions or may choose to withdraw excess funds on open positions.

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities was $59.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020, compared to cash used in operating activities of $22.9
million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, There were no specific items outside the normal course of business that impacted our cash provided by
operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2020 or cash used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2019,

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $4.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to cash used in investing activities of $5.5 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2019. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, cash used in investing activities consisted of cash used for
capital expenditures of $4.2 million. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, cash used in investing activities consisted of $3.1 million in cash used
for capital expenditures and 52,4 million used for the purchase of a minority interest in Top Third Ag Marketing, LLC.

The cash used for capital expenditures is primarily the result of our ongoing efforts to optimize our retail trading platform in a cost effective manner, which
we expect to improve our customer experience.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities was $60.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to cash used in financing activities of $6.5
million for the three months ended March 31, 2019. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, significant uses of cash were $58.5 million used to
settle the 2020 convertible notes and $2.3 million used to pay cash dividends. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, significant uses of cash were

$4.2 million to purchase treasury stock and $2.3 million used to pay cash dividends.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There were no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from those disclosed in the section “Management’s Discussion and
Amnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019,

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will impact our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Our net interest
revenue is directly affected by the short-term interest rates we earn from re-investing our cash and our customers’ cash. As a result, a portion of our interest
income will decline if interest rates fall. Short-term interest rates are highly sensitive to factors that are beyond our control, including general economic
conditions and the policies of various governmental and regulatory authorities. Qur cash and cash equivalents and customer cash and cash equivalents are
held in cash and cash equivalents including cash at banks, deposits at liquidity providers, in money market funds that invest in highly liquid investment
grade securities including short-term U.S. treasury bills, as well as directly in U.S. treasury bills. The interest rates earned on these deposits and
investments affects our interest revenue, We estimate that as of March 31, 2020, an immediate 100 basis point decrease in short-term interest rates would
result in approximately $7.3 million less in annual pretax income.

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk arises from the possibility that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates will impact the value of our earnings and assets. Entities that have assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the primary economic environment in which the entity operates are subject to remeasurement, The
majority of our sales and related operating costs are denominated in the currency of the local country and translated into USD for consolidated reporting
purposes, Although the majority of the assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are denominated in the functional currency of the subsidiary, they may
also hold assets or liabilities denominated in other currencies. As a result, our results of operations and financial position are exposed to changing currency
rates. We may consider entering into hedging transactions to mitigate our exposure to foreign currency exchange rates. These hedging transactions may not
be successful.

Credit Risk

Our trading operations require a commitment of our capital and involve risk of loss because of the potential that a customer’s losses may exceed the
amount of cash in their account. While we are able to closely monitor each customer’s exposure, it does not guarantee our ability to eliminate negative
customer account balances prior to an adverse currency price change or other market events, such as the extreme volatility in the Swiss franc following the
SNB market event in January 2015. Changes in market conditions or unforeseen extreme market events mean that we may not be able to recover negative
client equity from our customers. This could materially adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, if we cannot recover funds from our
custamers, we may nonetheless be required to fund positions we hold with our liquidity providers or other third parties and, in such an event, our available
funds may not be sufficient to meet our obligations to these third parties, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.

In order to help mitigate this risk, we require that each trade must be collateralized in accardance with our margin policies described below, Each customer
is required to have minimum funds in their account for opening positions, which we refer to as the initial margin, and for maintaining positions, which we
refer to as maintenance margin, depending on the product being traded. Margin requirements are expressed as a percentage of the customer’s total position
in that product, and the customer’s total margin requirement is based on the aggregate margin requirement across all of the positions that a customer holds
at any one moment in time. Each net position in a particular product is margined separately, which is generally a conservative margin policy. Our systems
automatically monitor each customer’s margin requirements in real time, and we confirm that each of our customers has sufficient cash collateral in his or
her account before we execute their trades. We may also adjust required customer margins (both initial and maintenance) from time to time based on our
monitoring of various factors, including volatility and liguidity. If at any point in time a customer’s trading position does not comply with the applicable
margin requirement, the position may be automatically
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liquidated, partially or entirely, in accordance with our margin policies and procedures, which protect both us and the customer, Our margin and liquidation
policies are set forth in our customer agreements.

We are also exposed to potential credit risk relating to the counterparties with which we hedge our trades and the financial institutions with which we
deposit cash. We mitigate these risks by transacting with several of the largest financial institutions in the world, with limits on our exposure to any single
financial institution. In the event that our access to one or more financial institutions becomes limited, our ability to hedge may be impaired.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in connection with our retail trading activities. Because we act as counterparty to our retail cusiomers’ transactions, we are
exposed to risk on each trade that the value of our position will decline. Accordingly, accurate and efficient management of our net exposure is a high
priority, and we have developed policies addressing bath our autemated and manual procedures to manage our exposure. These risk-management policies
and procedures are established and reviewed regularly by the Risk Committee of our Board of Directors. Our risk-management policies require quantitative
analyses by instrument, as well as assessment of a range of market inputs, including trade size, dealing rate, customer margin and market liguidity. Our
risk-management procedures require our team of senior traders to monitor risk exposure on a continuous basis and update senior management both
informally over the course of the trading day and formally through intraday and end of day reporting. A key component of our approach to managing
market risk is that we do not initiate market positions for our own account in anticipation of future movements in the relative prices of products we offer.
To facilitate our risk-management activities, we maintain levels of capital in excess of those currently required under applicable regulations. As of
March 31, 2020, we maintained regulatory capital levels of $261.3 million, which represented approximately 3.0 times the capital we were required to hold
under applicable regulations.

Cash Liguidity Risk

In normal conditions, our market making business and related services are self-financing as we generate sufficient cash flows o pay our expenses as they
become due. As a result, we generally do not face the risk that we will have insufficient cash to meet our payment obligations as they arise. Our cash flows,
however, are influenced by customer trading volume, currency volatility and liquidity in markets in which we have positions. These factors are directly
impacted by domestic and international market and economic conditions that are beyond our control, In an effort to manage this risk, we have secured a
substantial liquidity pool by establishing trading relationships with several financial institutions. These relationships provide us with sufficient access to
liquidity to allow us to consistently execute significant trades in varying market conditions at the notional amounts our customers desire, We generally
maintain collateral on deposit, which includes our funds and our customers’ funds, with our liquidity providers. For the three months ended March 31,
2020, collateral on deposit was $62.5 million,

Our trading operations further involve the risk of losses due to the potential failure of our customers to perform their obligations under the transactions we
enter into with them, which increases our exposure to cash liquidity risk. To reduce this risk, our margin policy requires that we mark our customers’
accounts to market each time the market price of a position in their portfolio changes and provides for automatic liquidation of positions, as described
above.

Operational Risk

Our operations are subject to broad and various risks resulting from technological interruptions, failures or capacity constraints in addition to risks
involving human error or misconduct. We are heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of the computer and communications systems supporting
our operations. Our computer infrastructure is potentially vulnerable to physical or electronic computer break-ins, viruses and similar disruptive problems
and security breaches. We have established robust programs to monitor our computer systems, platforms, and related technologies to promptly address
issues that arise. We have established disaster recovery facilities in strategic locations to ensure that we can continue to operate with limited interruptions in
the event that our primary systems are damaged. As with our technological systems, we have established policies and procedures designed to monitor and
prevent both human errors, such as clerical mistakes or incorrectly placed trades, as well as human misconduct, such as unauthorized trading, fraud, or
negligence. In addition, we seek to mitigate the impact of any operational issues by maintaining insurance coverage for various contingencies.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

{a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specitied in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated
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and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (*“CFO™) as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management of the Company, with the participation of its CEQ and CFQ, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures.
Based on their evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the Company’s CEO and CFO have concluded that
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
were effective.

{b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(f) under
the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the three months ended March 31, 2020, we incorporate herein by reference the discussions set forth under “Legal Proceedings” in Part I, Item 3 of our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 describes the various important risk factors facing our business in Part I,
Item 1A under the heading “Risk Factors.” There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in that section of our Annual Report on Form
10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

MNone,

(b) Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer

None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Maone.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

MNone.
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ITEM 6.

hibi

21

4.1

1.2

321
32.2
101.5CH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

EXHIBITS

Description
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc., INTL FCStone Inc. and Golf Merger Sub |
Inc., dated as of February 26, 2020 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the registrants Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2020, No. 001-35008)

Amendment No. 3 to Rights Agreement by and between GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc. and Broadridge Corporate Issuer
Solutions, Inc., dated as of February 26, 2020 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrants Current
Report on form 8-K filed on February 27, 2020, No, 001-35008).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Actof 1934, as
amended.*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer as required by section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
Certification of Chief Financial Officer as required by section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

Filed herewith.

Compensation related contract.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly autharized.

GAIN Capital Holding, Inc.

Date: May 13, 2020 /s/ Glenn H. Stevens

Glenn H. Stevens

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 13, 2020 J/s/ Nigel Rose

Nigel Rose
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Glenn H. Stevens, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-0Q) of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

() Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
tinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying otficer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 13, 2020 /s{ Glenn H. Stevens

Glenn H. Stevens
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Nigel Rose, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q) of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have;

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reperting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c)  Ewvaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially atfect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

B The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control aver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely atfect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other emplovees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 13, 2020 /s/ Nigel Rose

Nigel Rose
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1. Glenn H. Stevens, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and President of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™)
hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to my knowledge:

E The accompanying quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2020 (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 13, 2020 /s/ Glenn H. Stevens

Glenn H. Stevens
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate
disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed torm within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and fumnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Nigel Rose, the undersigned Chief Financial Officer of GAIN Capital Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™) hereby certify pursuant to
18 U.5.C, Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to my knowledge:

E The accompanying quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2020 (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 13, 2020 /s/ Nigel Rose
Nigel Rose

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate
disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed torm within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and fumnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.







EXHIBIT 99.2

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

The accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information furnished in this Exhibit 99.2 was prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Regulation S-X and gives effect to the July 31, 2020 (the “GAIN acquisition date”) merger of Golf Merger Sub I Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a Delaware
corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of StoneX Group Inc. (formerly INTL FCStone Inc. and referred to herein as (the “Company”)) , with and into GAIN Capital Holdings,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“GAIN”), with GAIN surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
as of February 26, 2020, by and among the Company, Merger Sub and GAIN (the “Merger Agreement”).

On June 11, 2020, the Company completed the issuance and sale of $350 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.625% Senior Secured Notes due 2025 (the “Notes”). The
Notes were issued at the offering price of 98.5% of the aggregate principal amount thereof. The Notes were issued pursuant to an Indenture, dated June 11, 2020 (the “Indenture”),
by and among the Company, the guarantors party thereto from time to time and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (in such capacity, the “Trustee”) and collateral agent (in
such capacity, the “Collateral Agent”). The gross proceeds from the sale of the Notes were placed into a segregated escrow account and released pursuant to the satisfaction of
certain escrow release conditions, including the consummation of the Merger on July 31, 2020. On July 31, 2020, the Company used the net proceeds from the sale of the Notes,
together with cash on hand, to (1) fund the cash merger consideration due to GAIN shareholders who did not dissent to the Merger and (2) pay certain related transaction fees and
expenses. The remaining proceeds were utilized to fund the repayment of substantially all of GAIN’s 5.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2022 (“the “GAIN Convertible Notes™)
on September 1, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information gives effect to the Merger with acquisition accounting applied to GAIN as the accounting acquiree and the
related issuance of the Notes and use of net proceeds therefrom as described above.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not give effect to any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue synergies that may result from the
Merger. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information also does not give effect to the repurchase of the GAIN Convertible Notes which the Company does not
believe is directly attributable to the Merger.

The historical consolidated financial information in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information furnished in this Exhibit 99.2 has been adjusted to give
effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the Merger, (2) factually supportable and (3) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of
income, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results of the Company and GAIN following the Merger.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information furnished in this Exhibit 99.2 has been presented for informational purposes only and is not necessarily
indicative of what the combined company’s financial position or results of operations would have been had the transactions been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information contains estimated adjustments based upon available information and certain assumptions that the Company
believes are reasonable under the circumstances. The assumptions underlying the pro forma adjustments are described in greater detail in the accompanying notes to the unaudited
pro forma condensed combined financial information. In many cases, these assumptions are based upon preliminary information and estimates. Differences between these
preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting will occur, and these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information and the combined company’s future results of operations and financial position.



The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented to illustrate the estimated effects of the Merger and the issuance of the Notes and use of net
proceeds therefrom as described above as follows:

¢ The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2020 was prepared based on:
1. The historical unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of March 31, 2020; and
2. The historical unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of GAIN as of March 31, 2020.
¢ The unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the year ended September 30, 2019 was prepared based on:
1. The historical audited consolidated income statement of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2019; and
2. The historical audited consolidated statement of operations of GAIN for the year ended December 31, 2019.
¢ The unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the six months ended March 31, 2020 was derived based on:
1. The historical unaudited condensed consolidated income statement of the Company for the six months ended March 31, 2020; and
2. The historical audited consolidated statement of operations of GAIN for the year ended December 31, 2019; plus

(a) the historical unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations of GAIN for the three months ended March 31, 2020; less
(b) the historical unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations of GAIN for the nine months ended September 30, 2019.

As the GAIN unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated income statement information for the six months ended March 31, 2020 was derived from the historical audited
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019, plus (a) the historical unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the three months
ended March 31, 2020, less (b) the historical unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, GAIN’s results for the
fourth quarter of its fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 are included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the year ended September 30, 2019
and the unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the six months ended March 31, 2020.




(Unaudited) (in millions, except share and per share amounts)
Revenues:
Sales of physical commodities
Principal gains, net
Commission and clearing fees
Consulting, management, and account fees
Interest income
Total revenues
Cost of sales of physical commodities
Operating revenues
Transaction-based clearing expenses
Introducing broker commissions
Interest expense
Net operating revenues
Compensation and other expenses:
Compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing
Trading systems and market information
Occupancy and equipment rental
Professional fees
Travel and business development
Non-trading technology and support
Depreciation and amortization
Communications
Bad debts
Recovery on physical coal
Goodwill impairment
Other
Total compensation and other expenses
Other gains
Income (loss) before tax
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Earnings per share:
Basic

Diluted

Weichted.

W verage

ber of shares

Basic

Diluted

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statement
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Historical Gain After

Historical Company Reclassifications Year Pro Forma
Year Ended Ended December 31, 2019 Pro Forma Condensed
September 30, 2019 (Unaudited) Adjustments Combined Income
(Unaudited) (Note 4) (Note 5) Statement
$ 31,8303 = = $ 31,830.3
415.8 178.8 — 594.6
372.4 37.6 — 410.0
79.6 32 — 82.8
198.9 16.6 — 215.5
32,897.0 236.2 — 33,133.2
31,790.9 — — 31,790.9
1,106.1 236.2 — 1,342.3
183.5 18.9 — 202.4
114.7 29.3 — 144.0
154.7 15.8 325 AB 203.0
653.2 172.2 (32.5) 792.9
393.1 78.1 — 471.2
52 384 — 43.6
38.8 16.5 — 553
19.4 9.5 — 289
21.0 11.8 — 32.8
16.2 2.0 — 18.2
20.1 12.3 — 324
14.0 259 8.8) C 31.1
6.6 29 — 9.5
25 2.0 — 4.5
(12.4) — — (12.4)
— 28.1 — 28.1
232 18.3 — 41.5
547.7 245.8 (8.8) 784.7
5.5 — — 5.5
111.0 (73.6) (23.7) 13.7
259 (12.8) 6.7) D 6.4
$ 85.1 (60.8) (17.0) $ 7.3
N 4.46 $ 0.38
$ 4.39 $ 0.38
18,738,905 18,738,905
19,014,395 19,014,395

See notes to the unaudited pro forma financial information.



(Unaudited) (in millions, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues:
Sales of physical commodities
Principal gains, net
Commission and clearing fees
Consulting, management, and account fees
Interest income
Total revenues
Cost of sales of physical commodities
Operating revenues
Transaction-based clearing expenses
Introducing broker commissions
Interest expense
Net operating revenues
Compensation and other expenses:
Compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing
Trading systems and market information
Occupancy and equipment rental
Professional fees
Travel and business development
Non-trading technology and support
Depreciation and amortization
Communications
Bad debts
Goodwill impairment
Other
Total compensation and other expenses
Other gains
Income (loss) before tax
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Earnings per share:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average ber of shares: out

e

Basic

Diluted

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statement
For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020

Historical Gain After Pro Forma
Reclassifications Pro Forma Condensed
Historical Company (Unaudited) Adjustments Combined Income
(Unaudited) (Note 4) (Note 5) Statement
$ 30,994.9 = $ = $ 30,994.9
281.0 213.9 — 494.9
203.8 18.1 — 221.9
439 1.6 — 455
87.7 6.3 — 94.0
31,6113 239.9 — 31,851.2
30,967.7 — — 30,967.7
643.6 239.9 — 883.5
110.1 9.4 — 119.5
55.8 19.6 — 75.4
63.8 7.8 162 A,B 87.8
413.9 203.1 (16.2) 600.8
240.7 40.1 — 280.8
5.6 14.9 — 20.5
21.6 9.9 — 315
9.9 5.5 — 15.4
10.7 6.3 (1.8) C 152
7.7 0.8 — 8.5
11.9 35 — 15.4
8.1 12.2 (3.6) D 16.7
3.1 1.4 — 4.5
4.4 4.8 — 9.2
— 28.1 — 28.1
12.5 12.3 — 24.8
336.2 139.8 (5.4) 470.6
0.1 — — 0.1
77.8 63.3 (10.8) 130.3
222 17.3 27 E 36.8
$ 55.6 46.0 $ (8.1) $ 93.5
$ 2.88 $ 4.86
s 284 s 478
18,811,268 18,811,268
19,132,497 19,132,497

See notes to the unaudited pro forma financial information.



PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

(in millions)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and other regulations
Collateralized transactions:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Securities borrowed

Deposits with and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing organizations, and counterparties,
net

Receivables from clients, net
Notes receivable, net
Income taxes receivable
Financial instruments owned, at fair value
Physical commodities inventory, net
Deferred income taxes, net
Property and equipment, net
Operating right of use assets
Goodwill and intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Payables to:
Clients
Broker-dealers, clearing organizations and counterparties
Lenders under loans
Senior secured borrowings, net
Convertible senior notes
Income taxes payable
Collateralized transactions:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Securities loaned
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock
Common stock
Common stock in treasury, at cost
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

March 31, 2020
Pro Forma
Historical Gain After Pro Forma Condensed
Historical Company Reclassifications (Unaudited) Adjustments Combined Balance
(Unaudited) (Note 4) (Note 5) Sheet

519.5 $ 470.2 $ 1039 A,B,CD $ 1,093.6
1,176.1 496.4 — 1,672.5
1,260.0 — — 1,260.0
1,063.8 — — 1,063.8
3,359.5 164.9 — 3,524.4
481.1 3.4 — 484.5
3.9 — — 39

1.5 — — 1.5
2,525.7 — — 2,525.7
2552 — — 255.2
14.0 16.6 — 30.6
43.0 29.1 — 72.1
31.6 13.5 31 E 482
73.1 21.2 (21.2) F 73.1
62.9 16.5 — 79.4
10,870.9 $ 1,231.8 $ 85.8 $ 12,188.5
184.8 $ 349 $ 216 G $ 2413
342 16.6 — 50.8
4,531.5 785.2 — 5,316.7
429.2 5.9 — 435.1
275.0 — — 275.0
1843 — 3354 H 519.7
— 80.3 11.7 I 92.0

10.6 11.8 — 22.4
2,800.3 — — 2,800.3
1,068.8 — — 1,068.8
703.6 — — 703.6
10,222.3 934.7 368.7 11,525.7
0.2 — — 0.2
(57.6) (127.5) 1275 J (57.6)
285.8 251.1 (251.1) J 285.8
458.4 209.8 (195.6) J,K,L,M 472.6
(38.2) (36.3) 363 J (38.2)
648.6 297.1 (282.9) 662.8
10,870.9 $ 1,231.8 $ 85.8 $ 12,188.5

See notes to the unaudited pro forma financial information.



NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information was prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Regulation S-X. The accompanying
unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the year ended September 30, 2019 reflects the Merger and the related issuance of the Notes and the use of net proceeds therefrom as
described above, as if such transactions had occurred on October 1, 2018, combining the results of the Company for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 and of GAIN for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2019. The accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the six months ended March 31, 2020 reflects the Merger and the related issuance of the
Notes and the use of net proceeds therefrom as described above, as if such transactions had occurred on October 1, 2019, combining the results of the Company and GAIN for the respective periods.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2020 reflects the Merger and related issuance of the Notes and the use of net proceeds therefrom as
described above, as if such transactions had occurred on March 31, 2020, combining the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets of the Company and GAIN as of March 31, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information reflects the issuance of the Notes and the use of net proceeds therefrom as described above and also reflects the Merger under the
acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations. The Company is the acquiror for financial accounting purposes. Under the acquisition method of accounting,
the purchase price is allocated to the underlying tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values. To prepare the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information, the Company adjusted GAIN’s assets and liabilities to their estimated fair values based upon a preliminary allocation. As of the date of this Form 8-K, the Company
has not completed the detailed valuations necessary to finalize the required estimated fair values of GAIN’s assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the related allocation of the purchase price.
Accordingly, the final acquisition accounting adjustments may be materially different from the unaudited pro forma adjustments.

Certain financial information of GAIN as presented in its historical consolidated and condensed consolidated financial statements has been reclassified to conform to the historical presentation of the
Company’s consolidated and condensed consolidated financial statements for the purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information as further detailed in Note
4.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been compiled in a manner consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Company, which are materially consistent
with those adopted by GAIN. As such, the unaudited pro forma condensed financial information does not reflect any adjustments to conform GAIN’s results and financial position to the Company’s
accounting policies.

3. PURCHASE PRICE ACCOUNTING AND ESTIMATED MERGER CONSIDERATION

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet has been adjusted to reflect a preliminary allocation of the preliminary cash consideration to the fair value of GAIN’s identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The preliminary purchase price allocation in this unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is based upon the terms of the Merger Agreement,
pursuant to which each share of GAIN’s common stock issued and outstanding was converted into the right to receive $6.00 in cash, without interest. Based upon GAIN’s fully diluted shares
outstanding, the total cash consideration required to be paid to GAIN’s shareholders pursuant to the Merger Agreement is $236.6 million.



Information regarding the preliminary cash consideration to be paid for the Merger is as follows (in millions, except per share amount):

Cash price per share established in Merger Agreement $ 6.00
Fully diluted shares 394
Total Merger consideration $ 236.6

Aggregate cash consideration paid upon the Merger

3 215.0
Accrual for merger cash consideration 21.6
Total Merger consideration $ 236.6

Subsequent to the GAIN acquisition date, holders of 3.6 million shares of GAIN common stock outstanding at the GAIN acquisition date who did not vote to approve the merger (“Dissenting
Holders”, and the shares held by such Dissenting Holders, the “Dissenting Shares”) purportedly demanded appraisal rights pursuant to Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law in the
Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware. The $21.6 million accrual for merger consideration included in the total merger consideration was based upon 3.6 million Dissenting Shares assuming a
right to receive $6.00 per share at the Gain acquisition date. Any subsequent settlement with the Dissenting Holders will be considered the settlement of a post-acquisition contingency to be included
in the Company’s post-acquisition consolidated income statements.

The following table summarizes the preliminary purchase price allocation assuming the acquisition date for the Merger was March 31, 2020 (in millions):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 470.2
Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and other regulations 496.4
Deposits with and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing organizations, and counterparties 164.9
Receivables from clients, net 34
Deferred income taxes 16.6
Property and equipment, net 29.1
Right of use assets, net 16.6
Other assets 16.5
Total tangible assets acquired $ 1,213.7
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 34.9
Operating lease liabilities 16.6
Payable to clients 785.2
Payable to broker-dealers, clearing organizations, and counterparties 59
Income taxes payable 11.8
Convertible senior notes 92.0
Total tangible liabilities assumed 3 946.4
Tangible net assets acquired 267.3
Total Merger consideration 236.6
Bargain purchase gain $ 30.7

Assuming the Merger had occurred on March 31, 2020, management has made an initial fair value estimate of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of that date. All purchase accounting
estimates are subject to revision upon finalizing its purchase accounting estimates; a process in which the Company has sought the assistance of a third-party valuation expert.

For the purposes of the preliminary allocation, the Company has assumed that the carrying value of GAIN’s property and equipment approximates its fair value. Additionally, the Company has
assumed that no purchase price is assigned to GAIN’s intangible assets. These assumptions could change materially upon the completion of the final valuation analysis.

The Merger included the acquisition of certain derivative financial instruments that are carried at fair value in GAIN’s historical condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2020. For
assets and liabilities not carried at fair value in GAIN’s



historical condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2020, with the exception of deferred income taxes, property and equipment, and right of use assets, the Company believes that due to
the short-term nature of the tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed and GAIN’s ability to initiate the withdrawal and settlement of client related trading balances, that their carrying values
approximate their fair values. On September 1, 2020, the Company redeemed substantially all of the GAIN Convertible Notes with the proceeds from the issuance of the Notes in connection with the
transactions and, thus, the fair value of the GAIN Convertible Notes was assumed to be equivalent to the redemption value.

Based upon the excess of the net tangible assets acquired in comparison to the total Merger consideration detailed above and assuming that the final purchase price allocation results in no purchase
price being assigned to GAIN’s intangible assets and results in a fair value being assigned to GAIN’s property and equipment that approximates its carrying value, the Company would have recorded
a bargain purchase gain related to the Merger of approximately $30.7 million assuming the Merger had occurred on March 31, 2020.



4. RECLASSIFICATION ADJUSTMENTS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the historical presentation of GAIN’s consolidated financial statements to conform to the financial statement presentation of the Company. The
reclassifications result in consistency of reporting between the Company and GAIN with no impact on total assets, total liabilities, total stockholders’ equity, and net (loss) income.

Additionally, the Company has reclassified $5.2 million and $5.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the six months ended March 31, 2020, respectively, of marketing related costs to
‘Selling and marketing’ on the unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statements that were historically included within ‘Other’ expenses to conform to the financial presentation of Gain.

Reclassifications to GAIN’s condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2020 are as follows:

(in millions) Before Reclassifications Reclassifications After Reclassifications
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2933 $ 176.9 $ 470.2
Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and other regulations — 496.4 496.4
Cash and securities held for customers 7852 (785.2) —
Receivables from brokers 53.0 119 164.9
Receivables from clients, net — 34 34
Deferred income taxes — 16.6 16.6
Property and equipment, net 29.1 — 29.1
Operating right of use assets — 13.5 135
Intangible assets, net 212 — 21.2
Other assets 50.0 (33.5) 16.5
Total assets $ 1,231.8 $ — $ 1,231.8

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ — $ 349 $ 349
Operating lease liabilities — 16.6 16.6
Payables to clients 785.2 — 785.2
Payables to brokers 59 — 5.9
Accrued compensation and benefits 6.5 (6.5) —
Accrued expense and other liabilities 45.0 (45.0) —
Income taxes payable 11.8 — 11.8
Convertible senior notes 80.3 = 80.3

Total liabilities 934.7 — 934.7

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Common stock — — —

Common stock in treasury, at cost (127.5) — (127.5)
Additional paid-in capital 251.1 — 251.1
Retained earnings 209.8 — 209.8
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (36.3) — (36.3)
Total stockholders’ equity 297.1 — 297.1

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,231.8 $ — $ 1,231.8




Reclassifications to GAIN’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019, are as follows:

(in millions)
Revenues:
Retail revenue
Futures revenue
Other revenue
Principal gains, net
Commission and clearing fees
Consulting, management, and account fees
Total non-interest revenue
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Total net interest revenue
Transaction-based clearing expenses
Introducing broker commissions
Net operating revenues
Compensation and other expenses:
Employee compensation and benefits
Selling and marketing
Trading systems and market information
Referral fees
Trading expenses
Occupancy and equipment rental
Professional fees
Travel and business development
Non-trading technology and support
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Purchased intangible amortization
Communications
Communications and technology
Bad debts
Restructuring expenses
Goodwill impairment
Other expenses
Total compensation and other expenses
Operating loss
Interest expense on long term borrowings
Loss before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit

Net loss

Before Reclassifications Reclassifications After Reclassifications

$ 1717 (171.7) =
348 (34.8) —
7.1 (7.1) —
— 178.8 178.8

— 37.6 37.6
— 3.2 3.2
219.6 — 219.6
16.6 — 16.6
2.3 13.5 15.8
143 (13.5) 0.8
— 18.9 18.9

— 29.3 29.3
2339 (61.7) 172.2
78.1 — 78.1
384 — 384
— 16.5 16.5
29.3 (29.3) —
20.8 (20.8) —
— 9.5 9.5

— 11.8 11.8

— 2.0 2.0
— 123 123
50.6 (50.6) —
17.1 8.8 259
8.8 (8.8) —
— 2.9 29
19.5 (19.5) —
2.0 — 20
1.3 (1.3) —
28.1 — 28.1
— 183 183
294.0 (48.2) 245.8
(60.1) (13.5) (73.6)
13.5 (13.5) —
(73.6) — (73.6)
(12.8) — (12.8)
$ (60.8) — (60.8)




Reclassifications to GAIN’s consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended March 31, 2020, are as follows:

(in millions) Before Reclassifications Reclassifications After Reclassifications
Revenues:
Retail revenue 213.3 (213.3) —
Futures revenue 16.6 (16.6) —
Other revenue 3.7 3.7) —
Principal gains, net — 2139 2139
Commission and clearing fees — 18.1 18.1
Consulting, management, and account fees — 1.6 1.6
Total non-interest revenue 233.6 — 233.6
Interest revenue 6.3 — 6.3
Interest expense 1.0 6.8 7.8
Total net interest expense 53 (6.8) (1.5)
Transaction-based clearing expenses — 9.4 9.4
Introducing broker commissions — 19.6 19.6
Net operating revenues 2389 (35.8) 203.1
Compensation and other expenses:
Employee compensation and benefits 40.1 — 40.1
Selling and marketing 14.9 — 14.9
Trading systems and market information — 9.9 9.9
Referral fees 19.6 (19.6) —
Trading expenses 9.6 9.6) —
Occupancy and equipment rental — 55 55
Professional fees — 6.3 6.3
Travel and business development — 0.8 0.8
Non-trading technology and support — 3.5 3.5
General and administrative 26.7 (26.7) —
Depreciation and amortization 8.6 3.6 12.2
Purchased intangible amortization 3.6 (3.6) —
Communications — 1.4 1.4
Communications and technology 9.1 ©.1) —
Bad debts 4.8 — 4.8
Restructuring expenses 2.7 2.7) —
Goodwill impairment 28.1 — 28.1
Transaction costs 1.0 (1.0) —
Other expenses = 12.3 12.3
Total compensation and other expenses 168.8 (29.0) 139.8
Operating income 70.1 (6.8) 63.3
Interest expense on long term borrowings 6.8 (6.8) —
Income before income tax expense 63.3 — 63.3
Income tax expense 17.3 — 17.3
Net income 46.0 — 46.0

5. PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is based upon the historical consolidated and condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and of GAIN and
certain adjustments which the Company believes are reasonable to give effect to the Merger and the issuance of the Notes and use of the net proceeds therefrom as described above. These adjustments
are based upon currently available information and certain assumptions, and therefore, the actual adjustments will likely differ from the pro forma adjustments. In particular, such adjustments include
information based upon our preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration, which is subject to adjustment based upon the completion of our valuation analysis.



The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information included herein was prepared using the acquisition method of accounting for the Merger. As discussed above, the purchase price
allocation is considered preliminary at this time. However, the Company believes that the preliminary purchase price allocation and other related assumptions utilized in preparing the unaudited pro

forma condensed combined financial information provide a reasonable basis for presenting the pro forma effects of the Merger and the issuance of the Notes and use of the net proceeds therefrom as
described above. Other than those pro forma adjustments described below, the Company believes there are no adjustments, in any material respects, that need to be made to present GAIN’s financial
information in accordance with U.S. GAAP, or to align GAIN’s historical accounting policies with the Company’s.

The adjustments made in preparing the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2020 are as follows:

A. To record the cash proceeds from the issuance of the Notes, net of original issue discount and deferred financing costs, of $335.4 million.

B. To record the payment of the Merger cash consideration to GAIN’s non-dissenting shareholders on the acquisition date of $215.0 million.

C.  To adjust for the quarterly cash dividend of $2.4 million equal to $0.06 per share of GAIN’s common stock declared by the GAIN Board of Directors subsequent to March 31, 2020.

D.  To record the usage of cash of $14.1 million from the balance sheet to pay acquisition related costs of the Merger.

E. To adjust GAIN’s operating right of use assets to fair value in connection with the Company’s preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration.

F. To adjust GAIN’s intangible assets as a result of the preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration to the fair value of the net assets acquired.

G.  To accrue for the Merger consideration related to the Dissenting Shares of $21.6 million.

H.  To record the issuance and proceeds of the Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $350.0 million, less original issue discount of $5.3 million and deferred financing costs of $9.3 million.

L To adjust GAIN’s Convertible Notes to fair value in connection with the Company’s preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration.

J. To record the elimination of GAIN’s equity of $297.1 million.

K.  To accrue for directly attributable, factually supportable, and nonrecurring acquisition related costs related to the Merger of $14.1 million.

L. To record a bargain purchase gain upon the Merger of $30.7 million based upon the preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration.

M.  To adjust for the quarterly cash dividend of $2.4 million equal to $0.06 per share of GAIN’s common stock declared by the GAIN Board of Directors subsequent to March 31, 2020.

The adjustments made in preparing the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statement for the year ended September 30, 2019 are as follows:

A.  To adjust for the directly attributable and recurring interest expense of $30.1 million that will be incurred by the Company as a result of the issuance of the Notes.

B. To adjust for the directly attributable, factually supportable, and recurring amortization of $2.4 million in original issue discount and deferred financing costs that were incurred by the
Company upon the issuance of the Notes.

C. To reverse the amortization expense of $8.8 million incurred on GAIN’s previously acquired intangible assets based upon the preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration to the fair
value of the net assets acquired.

D.  To record the tax effects of the pro forma adjustments. The pro forma adjustments attributable to GAIN were tax effected at the applicable blended statutory tax rate of 19.8%, and the pro
forma adjustments attributable to the Company were tax effected at the applicable blended statutory tax rate of 26%. The Company’s effective tax rate may be materially different after
conclusion of final acquisition accounting, removal of non-recurring items reflected in historical amounts, analysis of the post-closing geographical mix of income, and other factors.
Adjustments to tax assets and liabilities will occur in conjunction with the finalization of the purchase accounting, and these adjustments could be material.

The adjustments made in preparing the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statement for the six months ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:



To adjust for the directly attributable and recurring interest expense of $15.1 million that will be incurred by the Company following the issuance of the Notes.

To adjust for the directly attributable, factually supportable, and recurring amortization of $1.1 million in deferred financing costs that will be incurred by the Company following the issuance
of the Notes.

To adjust for directly attributable, factually supportable, and nonrecurring acquisition related costs related to the Merger of $1.8 million included in the results for the six months ended March
31, 2020.

To reverse the amortization expense of $3.6 million incurred on GAIN’s previously acquired intangible assets based upon the preliminary allocation of the Merger consideration to the fair
value of the net assets acquired.

To record the tax effects of the pro forma adjustments. The pro forma adjustments attributable to GAIN were tax effected at the applicable blended statutory tax rate of 28.2%, and the pro
forma adjustments attributable to the Company were tax effected at the applicable blended statutory tax rate of 26%. The Company’s effective tax rate may be materially different after
conclusion of final acquisition accounting, removal of non-recurring items reflected in historical amounts, analysis of the post-closing geographical mix of income, and other factors.
Adjustments to tax assets and liabilities will occur in conjunction with the finalization of the purchase accounting, and these adjustments could be material.

6. NONRECURRING CHARGES

As aresult of the Merger, GAIN recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $28.1 million based on the agreed-upon Merger consideration of $6.00 per share in their audited consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2019. The goodwill impairment charge is not reflected as a pro forma adjustment on the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statements
for the year ended September 30, 2019 and the six months ended March 31, 2020 as it is nonrecurring in nature.



